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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the audited financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “"Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

On 11 October 2013, the Company was spun-off from Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua Xia"”) and listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) by way of introduction.

The Group continued to focus on pharmaceutical wholesales and
distribution business and pharmaceutical retail chain business in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Our Group has a large and broad customer base through our
distribution network in Fujian Province in the PRC. Our Group
distributes pharmaceutical products to our customers located
principally in the Fujian Province and also sells pharmaceutical
products in neighboring provinces. Total revenue generated from
pharmaceutical wholesales and distribution business for the year
ended 31 March 2016 was approximately HK$1,083.341 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 19.57% as compared to
2015.

Our Group also operates pharmaceutical retail business through
Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited® ({82
B mgEsEBEEEREE2QT) which was accounted for as one
of our subsidiaries. We have an established retail network in Fujian
Province in the PRC. As at 31 March 2016, we directly operated
117 (2015: 119) retail pharmacies in six prefectural — level districts
of the Fujian Province in the PRC under the brand name “Huihao
Sihai".

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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ment’s Statement

The revenue contributed by the pharmaceutical retail business for
the year ended 31 March 2016 was approximately HK$238.422
million, representing an increase of approximately 8.00% as
compared to 2015.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year, total revenue of the Group for the year was
approximately HK$1,321.763 million in comparison with
approximately HK$1,567.687 million in 2015, representing a
decrease of approximately 15.69% compared with last year. The
gross profit of the Group was approximately HK$146.128 million
in comparison with HK$159.845 million in 2015. The net loss
attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$13.802 million in comparison with HK$772.949 million in
2015.

PROSPECTS

The management of the Group has realised that the new Good
Supply Practice (“New GSP") implemented by the China Food and
Drug Administration is not only a challenge but also a potential
opportunities for the Group to continue to address the needs of
the market and the public through refined services and quality

products.

It is a challenge as well as a potential opportunities for the group
because the promulgation and implementation of the new Good
Supply Practice in Fujian, the PRC in 2014 imposes stringent
regulations on pharmaceutical distributor operation which caused
significant decrease in pharmaceutical wholesales business of
the group on the ground that majority of the existing distributor
customers of the group who are not the qualified enterprises
under the new Good Supply Practice were walked out from the
sector. Also, due to the constraint of the existing direct sale
distribution facilities of the group, it is unable to cater for all the
market shares on distribution sale business which are covered
by those existing distributor customers. Nevertheless, it is also a
potential opportunities for the group because in August 2014,
Fujian Food and Drug Administration (BB X ERmEREE

EHEF) announced that 10 companies which are permitted to
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conduct the business in the distribution to public hospitals and
public healthcare institutions after 2016, in which the operating
subsidiary of the Company, namely (BEZEEM T EFEELIR
‘A7) Fujian Province Funzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical Co.
Limited* is on the list. The pharmaceutical market consolidation
has continued at national and local level providing opportunities
for companies with large scale operations like the Group and our
group would actively look for further development opportunities
made available by the continued healthcare reform arisen from
the New GSP. We will also continue further strengthen our drug
delivery to hospitals and wholesales segments business and

expansion of retails pharmacies in the year 2016/17.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the management team and staff for their tireless
dedicated that helps fuel the Group’s healthy development. In
addition, | would also like to thank all our shareholders, business
partners and customers for their continuous support. We will
continue to devote unwavering efforts to reap promising returns

for all parties.

Chen Jinshan

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 16 June 2016

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS MEGH=E
Summary of the results of the Group for the financial year ended AEEBE-ZT-AR"FZA=1+T—BLHEF
31 March 2016 is as follows: EEBHRENT:

o Total revenue was approximately HK$1,321.763 million o
(2015: approximately HK$1,567.687 million), representing
approximately 15.69% of decrease over 2015. The decrease
in revenue was mainly attributable to the reduction in
sales from the pharmaceutical wholesales and distribution

segment due to the implementation of the New GSP.

o Gross profit was approximately HK$146.128 million o
(2015: approximately HK$159.845 million), representing

approximately 8.58% of decrease over 2015.

o The operating profit was approximately HK$4.061 million o
(2015: loss of approximately HK$756.511 million). Operating
loss for last year was mainly due to the impairment loss
on the goodwill of approximately HK$785.169 million. If
such effect was taken out, the Group’s last year profit from
operations was approximately HK$28.658 million though
the result for this year represented approximately 85.83%

decrease as compared to last year.

o Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company o
was approximately HK$13.802 million (2015: approximately
HK$772.949 million).

o The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of o
approximately HK$203.500 million as at 31 March 2016 (31
March 2015: approximately HK$43.029 million).

o The board does not recommend the payment of a final o
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).
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Management Discussion

BUSINESS REVIEW

On 11 October 2013, the Company was spun-off from Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua Xia"”) and listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock

Exchange”) by way of introduction.

The Group continues to focus on pharmaceutical wholesales and
distribution business and pharmaceutical retail chain business in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Revenue

Looking back at 2015/16, the Group's revenue experienced
a decrease. The Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$1,321.763 million (2015: approximately HK$1,567.687
million) for the year ended 31 March 2016, accounting for a
decrease of approximately 15.69% over last year. The gross
profit margin of the Group was approximately 11.06%, which
maintained at a similar level as in 2015 which was approximately
10.20%.

Segment information

During the year, the revenue of the Group was principally
generated from: (1) pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution
business and (2) pharmaceutical retail chain business in PRC.
Financial information in respect of these operation is presented in

Note 7 to the consolidated financial statement.
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Pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business

The Group has a large and broad customer base through our
distribution network in Fujian Province in the PRC. The Group
distributes pharmaceutical products to our customers located
principally in the Fujian Province and also sells pharmaceutical
products in neighboring provinces such as Guangdong, Hunan,
Hubei, Jiangxi, Aunhui and Zhejiang. Our customers can be
categorised into three types namely hospitals and healthcare
institutions, distributor customers and end customers such
as companies operating pharmaceutical retail chain stores,
independent pharmacies, and outpatient departments of
community hospitals, healthcare service stations and clinics.
The revenue generated from the pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business amounted to approximately HK$1,083.341
million (2015: approximately HK$1,346.925 million), representing
approximately 19.57% of decrease over 2015 and accounted
for approximately 81.96% of the Group's revenue. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the reduction in sales to distributor
customers due to the stringent regulations after the promulgation

and implementation of the New GSP.

Pharmaceutical retail chain business

The Group operates pharmaceutical retail business through Fujian
Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited* ({8# =
PP Ig B EEE A REE A T) which was accounted for as one
of our subsidiaries. The Group offers a wide variety of products
in our retail pharmacies including prescription medicines, over-
the-counter medicines, healthcare food products, traditional
Chinese medicines, medical supplies and medical devices. As
at 31 March 2016, 117 (2015:

operated. The Group seeks to introduce new products and services

119) retail pharmacies were

to meet changing customer preferences and to differentiate
the Group from our competitors. The revenue generated from
pharmaceutical retail chain business amounted to approximately
HK$238.422 million (2015: approximately HK$220.762 million),
representing approximately 8.00% of increase over 2015.

*  English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Management Discussion

Other revenue

Other revenue, primarily including sundry income, bank interest
income, and rental income amounted to approximately HK$5.000
million (2015: approximately HK$6.379 million) for the year ended
31 March 2016.

Selling and distribution expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2016, selling and distribution
expenses amounted to approximately HK$100.466 million (2015:
approximately HK$90.590 million), representing an increase
of approximately 10.90% over the last year. The increase in
the expenses was due to the increase of salaries, promotional

expenses and rental expenses during the year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2016
amounted to approximately HK$48.359 million (2015:
approximately HK$46.774 million), representing a slightly increase

of approximately 3.39% over last year.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the finance costs of the Group
were approximately HK$16.365 million (2015: approximately
HK$8.819 million), representing a significant increase of
approximately 85.57% over the last year. The increase was mainly
due to the interest for the convertible notes issued during the

year.
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Loss attributable to owners of the Company

The Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$13.802 million (2015: HK$772.949 million)
during the year ended 31 March 2016. The decrease in loss was
mainly due to no impairment loss on goodwill for the year ended
31 March 2016 (2015: HK$785.169 million).

In August 2014, Fujian Food and Drug Administration* (@& &
EREREEEER) announced the 10 companies which are
permitted to conduct the business in the distribution to public
hospitals and public healthcare institutions after 2016, in which
the operating subsidiary of the Company, namely (BEZ & &
N EFEZEGR D T) Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao
Pharmaceutical Co. Limited” is on the list. Notwithstanding this
recognition as a qualified participant in the distribution industry
is encouraging, the effect of the implementation of the New GSP
and any future policy development on the hospital distribution
business of the Group remains uncertain. Having taken into
account the financial performance as of June 2014, the Board
reviewed again the potential effects of the New GSP on the
distribution business in late July 2014 and prudently lowered
the forecasted performance in sales to distributor customers,
therefore, it triggers impairment loss on the goodwill. The carrying
amount of goodwill was tested for impairment as at 30 June
2014. The impairment test compared the discounted cash flows of
the cash-generating units (CGUs) to the carrying amounts of the
CGUs. The recoverable amounts of the CGUs were significantly
less than the carrying value of goodwill, therefore, an impairment
loss on the goodwill of approximately HK785.169 million was
made in 2015.

*  English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$203.500 million as at 31 March 2016 (2015: approximately
HK$43.029 million). The Group recorded total current assets of
approximately HK$609.526 million as at 31 March 2016 (2015:
approximately HK$618.170 million) and total current liabilities of
approximately HK$278.444 million as at 31 March 2016 (2015:
approximately HK$372.296 million). The current ratio of the
Group, calculated by dividing the current assets by the current
liabilities, was approximately 2.189 as at 31 March 2016 (2015:
approximately 1.660).

As at 31 March 2016, the Group's gearing ratio which was
calculated based on outstanding debts (comprising bank
borrowings and principal amounts payable for convertible notes)
less cash and cash equivalents over total equity (including all
capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company) was
not applicable (2015: approximately 28.65%).

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had bank borrowings
outstanding balances and bill payables of approximately
HK$32.396 million and HK$16.308 million respectively. The
Group’s pledged bank deposits, prepaid lease payments and
investment property of approximately HK$6.096 million,
HK$10.623 million and HK$7.199 million respectively, were
pledged as collateral to secure banking facilities granted to the

Group.

nDETERMBER
AKEBRZ-ZE-RE=ZBA=1+T—HZ#AR
eRESZEEEANAH203,500,000/8 T
(ZZE—FHF :443,029,000/8 ) - KEH
R-ZBE-RNEZBA=Z+-BEHERBEE
#{E#609,526,000B T (ZFE—HF 4
618,170,000 T) URR-_ZE—<F=A
ST -—H#E8RBEEHLTEL278,444,0005%8
T (=2 — R :4372,296,00058 T) o R &
ERZZE-RE=ZA=+—-B2ZREL=E (&
RBEERURBEETE)NAE2.189(=F
—HF 1#1.660) °

R-E-RE=ZRA=+—H REEZEEA
BEE (REMKREZRER (BERITEER
RAUBREBEENzEAE2BE)RRERRS
LSEEBRUAER (BEAQATEE AEWN
FEEARBFE)FTE)ELTAER(ZZ—1
F:#28.65%) °

FEEFEESR
RZE-RE=ZA=+—-B AEEZH
AEERITEREHRRESZEES AR
32,396,000 Jt % 16,308,000 Jt » 2~ &£ [
ZEEERTFER ELNHEREBERREY
% 9 51 #96,096,0007% T+ 10,623,000 T &
7,199,000 Tt 2 WK MR R UEBERET
AEBZRITRME -

EREEEBRERAR 13
2015/2016 &R



&

= R D A

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 12 May 2015, Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited (“Hui Hao (HK)"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Fujian Province
Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.* (BB BB M H R
EHEEPRAF) ("Fuzhou Huihao”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
Hui Hao (HK) and Fuzhou Ren An Medical Technology Limited* (&
MI—ZBERF AR D T) ("Ren An”) entered into the Joint
Venture Agreement, pursuant to which Ren An agreed to make
a capital contribution of approximately RMB26 million to the
registered capital and the capital reserve of Fuzhou Huihao. As a
result, the equity interest of Hui Hao (HK) in Fuzhou Huihao was
diluted from 100% to 75% and Fuzhou Huihao held as to 75%
by Hui Hao (HK) and as to 25% by Ren An. Other than this, the
Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of

subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the year.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
On 14 May 2015, the Company entered into the Placing

Agreement with the Placing Agent pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place, through the Placing
Agent, on a best efforts basis, the Convertible Notes with principal
amounts aggregating up to HK$84,292,000 to the Placees at the
initial Conversion Price of HK$0.65 per Conversion Share (“the
Placing”). Based on the initial Conversion Price of HK$0.65 per
Conversion Share, a total of 129,680,000 Conversion Shares
will be allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the Convertible Notes in full. The Placing was
completed on 1 June 2015. Up to 31 March 2016, there was no
Convertible Notes converted into the Conversion Shares.

As at 31 March 2016, the total issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$6.484 million representing
648,405,300 ordinary shares (2015: 648,405,300 ordinary shares).

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Management Discussion and

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, no member of the Group was
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and
no litigation or claim of material importance was known to the
directors to be pending or threatened against any member of the
Group.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group had no material capital
commitments.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had 1,137 (2015: 1,046) full
time employees (including directors) as shown in the following
table:

|
R

BRAR/
R-ZE-—RERZE-HF=A=+—-H &
SERERARBESREMERFARSME
BERMEEMA AEEEAKE AT T ER K
THIAVEAREBECEARARNEE-

BExKIE
RZB-RERZZE-FHFE=ZA=+—H' X

SEWEERERENE-

{& B & %7 Bl B 36
R-E—RE=ZA=1+—0  AKEEHF1,137
Z(ZE—RF:1,046%)2HBEE (BEE
=) H#BER TR

Number of Staff

Location ith B BIA®
Hong Kong BB 6
PRC R E 1,131

For the year ended 31 March 2016, staff costs (including directors
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$73.925 million
(2015: approximately HK$71.278 million). The Group remunerates
its employees based on individual performance and qualification.
Apart from the basic remuneration, staff benefits include
the contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme,
discretionary bonus and medical coverage in Hong Kong; and
basic insurance for the elderly, basic medical insurance, work
injury insurance and unemployment insurance to the employees in
the PRC.

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

The management of the Group has realised that the New GSP
is not only a challenge but also a potential opportunities for the
Group to continue to address the needs of the market and the

public through refined services and quality products.
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It is a challenge as well as a potential opportunities for the

group because the promulgation and implementation of the
new Good Supply Practice in Fujian, the PRC in 2014 imposes
stringent regulations on pharmaceutical distributor operation
which caused decrease in pharmaceutical wholesales business of
the group on the ground that majority of the existing distributor
customers of the group who are not qualified enterprises
under the new Good Supply Practice were walked out from the
sector. Also, due to the constraint of the existing direct sale
distribution facilities of the group, it is unable to cater for all the
market shares on distribution sale business which are covered
by those existing distributor customers. Nevertheless, it is also a
potential opportunities for the group because in August 2014,
Fujian Food and Drug Administration* (B EE R REREE
B F) announced that 10 companies which are permitted to
conduct the business in the distribution to public hospitals and
public healthcare institutions after 2016, in which the operating
subsidiary of the Company, namely Fujian Province Funzhou City
Huihao Pharmaceutical Co. Limited" (BB RBM T EHFEEHFR
AA]) is on the list.

The pharmaceutical market consolidation has continued at
national and local level providing opportunities for companies
with large scale operations like the Group. At the same time,
competition among the industry is keen. Our group would actively
look for further development opportunities made available by the
continued healthcare reform arisen from the New GSP. We will
also continue further strengthen our drug delivery to hospitals and
wholesales segments business and expansion of retails pharmacies
in the year 2016/17.

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Management Discussion and

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The following is the key risk and uncertainty
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could

turn out to be material in the future.

Market Risks

PRC government policy

In August 2014, Fujian Food and Drug Administration” (824
EREREEBEER) announced a new Good Supply Practice
(“New GSP”) that only qualified companies are permitted to
conduct the business in the distribution to public hospitals and
public healthcare institutions after 2016, there is no assurance
that the PRC government will not legislate new policies in the

future to towards the industry.

Operational risks

Under the new GSP, although one of the subsidiaries, namely
(REEBEMTEHEZEBR QA Fujian Province Funzhou City
Huihao Pharmaceutical Co. Limited” is on the list, it is unable to
cater for all the market shares on distribution sale business which
are covered by those previous distributor customers due to the

constraint of the existing direct sale distribution facilities of the

group.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Since almost all transactions of the Group are denominated
in Renminbi and most of the bank deposits are being kept in
Renminbi to minimise exposure to foreign exchange risk, the
directors consider that the Group’s risk exposure to currency

fluctuations to be minimal.

Therefore, the Group had not implemented any formal hedging
or other alternative policies to deal with such exposure during the

year.

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Jinshan (“Mr. Chen”), aged 48, holds a bachelor
degree in finance and accounting. Mr. Chen has over 16 years
of accounting experience and had also been a project manager
for more than 6 years in an accounting firm. Mr. Chen was the
executive director of Hua Xia, the shares of which are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange for the period from 25 April 2006 to
10 October 2014.

Ms. Shum Ngai Pan, aged 43, holds a Master's Degree in
Business Administration. She has over 17 years of managerial
experience in companies engaged in the healthcare and

environmental protection sectors.

Ms. Yung Ka Lai (“Ms. Yung”), aged 29, obtained her Bachelor
degree of Science Business Management, Specialization in
Marketing from SUNY-Stony Brook University, United States. She
has 3 years of managerial experience in marketing. Ms. Yung is
the sister of Mr. Yung Ka Chun who is the substantial shareholder
of Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (stock code: 8143),
the shares of which is listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
("GEM"), which in turn is the substantial shareholder of the

Company.
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Directors’ and Senior Management?E

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liang Yichi (“Mr. Liang”), aged 63, joined our Group as
an independent non-executive Director on 4 September 2012.
Mr. Liang is formerly the vice-president of Fujian University of
Traditional Chinese Medicine (in September 2012, retired from the
position as vice president) and currently a tutor to master students
of Chinese Medicines and a tutor of the integration of traditional
and western medicine (first-tier subject) doctor’s degree of the
Fujian University of Traditional Chinese Medicine. Mr. Liang was
recognised by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC* (FREE AR
FE| AZEEF) as an young and middle-aged expert in outstanding
contribution* (A EF B EHEREXK) in 1989.

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (“Mr. Wong”), aged 49, joined our Group
as an independent non-executive Director on 11 April 2013.
Mr. Wong obtained a Diploma in Accounting from Hong Kong
Shue Yan College in July 1991 and is currently a Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong. He was admitted as an associate
member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountant (now known
as Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) and the
Association of International Accountants in the United Kingdom in
March 2000 and October 1999, respectively. He has over 10 years'
experience in working as chief financial officer, company secretary
and/or director in listed companies in Hong Kong where he was
involved in the finance and company secretarial matters and
has handled a number of corporate finance transactions such as
mergers and acquisitions, capital fund raising activities, corporate

restructuring and corporate transactions.

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Dr. Liu Yongping (“Dr. Liu”), aged 60, is a practicing solicitor
in Hong Kong and a consultant of a firm of solicitors in Hong
Kong. Dr. Liu has more than 20 years of experience in the capital
market and merger and acquisition legal services sector. Dr. Liu
graduated from the University of London with a master’s degree
in law in 1987 and from the University of Oxford with a doctor’s
degree in philosophy in 1994. Apart from his appointment with
the Company, Dr. Liu has been acting as an independent non-
executive director of Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the

2010. Dr. Liu has also been acting as an independent non-

“Stock Exchange”) (Stock code: 629), since June

executive director of China Forestry Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 930),
from September 2012 to June 2015. Save as disclosed above, Dr.
Liu did not hold any directorship in any other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong

Kong or overseas in the last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Ms. Xiang Zheng (“Ms. Xiang”), aged 54, is the General
Manager of Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical
Co. Limited" (REZEBEB/MTEHFEXER 23 ) ("Fuzhou
Huihao”). Ms. Xiang was graduated from The Open University of
Fujian® (R 2 EE SR K2 ) majoring in Business Administration,
and has more than 21 years of operational management
experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Ms. Xiang joined
our Group in December 2008. Prior to joining our Group,
Ms. Xiang worked in Fujian Sanming Medicine Shareholding
Co., Limited" (BRE=ZHEEROGERLA),

pharmaceutical enterprise in Sanming from 1992 to 2008,

a state-owned

where she served as salesperson, manager of pharmaceutical
department, manager of medical devices department and vice
general manager, and was mainly responsible for managing the

sales business.

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s

Mr. Luo Xintian (“Mr. Luo”), aged 49, is the General Manager
of Fujian Huiming Medicine Co. Limited* (B2 & BHEELIR
‘A@]) (“Fujian Huiming”). Mr. Luo was graduated from Fujian
Pharmaceutical School Adult Technical College* (1@i2 BB
A HE) majoring in Chinese Medicine, and has more than 26
years of managerial experience in the sales of pharmaceutical
products. Mr. Luo joined our Group in November 2008, and has
been the general manager of Fujian Huiming since April 2012.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Luo worked in several state-owned
pharmaceutical enterprises in Ninghua County, Jianning County
and Sanming City in Fujian Province since 1987 as salesman,
deputy manager in procurement department, deputy manager in
sales department, assistant to general manager and he was mainly
responsible for the management of the procurement and sales of

pharmaceutical products.

Mr. Chen Bing (“Mr. B. Chen"), aged 45, is the General Manager
of Putian Huihao Medicine Co. Limited* (ER B HEFEES
FR/AF]) ("Putian Huihao”). Mr. B. Chen was graduated from
Northwest College for Nationalities® (784t R #X 22 Fx ) majoring
in Business Enterprise Marketing, and has extensive operational
management experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr.
B. Chen joined our Group in December 2008. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. B. Chen worked in Zhangzhou Biochemistry
Pharmaceutical Group Co. Limited* CEMAE Yt EREEE S
PR /A &) as the sales director from 2006 to 2007, responsible for
managing the national sales business in the PRC.

Mr. Xu Jiwang (“Mr. Xu”), aged 42, is the General Manager
of Huihao Medicine (Quanzhou) Co. Limited* (SR#FEE%E (R M)
BBR2F) ("Quanzhou Huihao”). Mr. Xu was graduated from
Southwest Jiaotong University* (78 F X # K &) specialising
in Business Administration and has extensive operational
management experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Xu
joined our Group in January 2011. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Xu worked in Fujian Province Pharmaceutical Limited Liability
Company" (B2 BB HEBREME L F) from August 1994 to
November 2010, and served as the sales manager of the company,

responsible for managing the sales of pharmaceutical products.

#  English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Mr. Liu Zhao Liang (“Mr. Z. Liu’), aged 42, is the General
Manager of Nanping Huihao (E#F 8% (F¥)BER LD F) Mr.
Z. Liu was graduated from lJilin University ( & # K2 ) majoring
in Economies and has approximately 22 years operational
management experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Z. Liu

joined our Group since September 2014.

Mr. Chen Kaiping (“Mr. K. Chen"”), aged 53, is the assistant to
General Manager of Fuzhou Huihao and he is responsible for the
quality control of the company. Mr. K. Chen was graduated from
Fujian Province Pharmaceutical School* (B2 EEEER), and
is a qualified pharmacist. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. K. Chen
worked as manager of the quality control department in FHP
Chain and as deputy director of the quality control department
in FHP Company during the period from September 2003 to April
2008 and he was responsible for supervising the quality control of

pharmaceutical products.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Wai Wa (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 55, has been appointed
as the Company Secretary with effect from 30 September
2014. Mr. Tsang is a holder of a Bachelor degree in Finance and
Accounting and a Master degree in Business Administration. He
is a fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has more than 20 years
of professional experience in auditing, accounting, company

secretary and corporate finance.

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Environmental, Social and Governan

This is the first environmental, social and governance report
prepared by the Group, which illustrates the Group’s performance

in the environmental, social and governance matters.

Environmental protection

The Group is committed to environmental protection and
energy conservation. In the course of investment, construction
and operation, the Group has consistently carried out the
operation objective of “Benefiting the society and the populace”
and focused on sustainable development. With speediness,
reliability, precision and safety as its objective, the Group
possesses advanced logistics equipment, warehousing facility
and modernised ERP system, and is equipped with electronic
tag, RF picking, tray storage and other modern equipment for its
operation. The Group also introduced advanced IT programme
management and technical support of modern information
network and strived to facilitate paperless office and old stuff

reuse.

Relationship with suppliers

While focusing on its self-development, the Group is also in
pursuit of mutual advancement with its business partners.
With the further implementation of new industrial policies, the
cooperation between each party of the pharmaceutical supply
chain is becoming increasingly closer. Interest-binding promotes
the formation of strategic cooperation and alliance. We firmly
believe that partners are the most reliable resources of the Group
and that the development of the Group cannot be separated from

that of its partners.

With career platform as its foundation and in the principle of
sincere cooperation and mutual benefits, the Group gained
the recognition and favour of suppliers with its quality
merchandise and good services. It aims at realizing common value
enhancement, common interests and a win-win situation of the

parties.
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ShEGHRESE

The Group established a long-term stable partnership with
large and medium pharmaceutical manufacturers and suppliers
in provinces and cities nationwide, with tens of thousands of

cooperative varieties.

Customer service

The Group pays high attention to customer service quality and
standard. The Group always takes “Provide customers with
professional services, increase social wealth, facilitate common
development among corporation partners and us under equitable
relationship” as values to promote its business development. We
are customer-oriented, fully observe and study customer needs,
and constantly adjust products and business models to improve
service quality. The entities under the Group have established a
comprehensive customer management system. By increasing the
frequency of visits to customers and strengthening communication
with customers, feedback from customers can be obtained in a
timely fashion, thereby achieving higher standard of customer

services.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group fully complies with all laws and regulations and
regularly monitors and gathers information about changes in
laws, rules and regulations relevant to the Group’s businesses to
ensure the Group's observance of those applicable laws, rules and
regulations, especially those which may have material impact on

the Group.

The Group has been actively promoting policies for the prevention
of legal risks, and the engagement of legal advisors and
deepening the building of a system for in-house legal workflow
is to consolidate its capability of compliance and corporate
governance. The Group complies with the relevant laws and
regulations such as the Pharmaceutical Administration Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and Quality Administration Practice for

Pharmaceutical Operation to operate its businesses.
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Environmental, Social and Governan

Staff

It has always been the Group's firm belief that staff is the most
valuable resources and wealth of enterprise development. We
respect and protect the interest of every staff, develop a good
working environment for staff growth, adhere to our belief in
“People-oriented, provide an equitable and open environment
for talents to compete”, provide staff with a sound development
channel with ample training, care about staff's livelihood and
support them to achieve their self-values. We strictly comply
with the laws and regulations of Labour Contract Law, advocate
staff equality and diversity, implement market competitive
remuneration and benefit system, concern about staff's
occupational health and safety, and established a comprehensive
labour relationship management system. Under the objectives of
open communication, norm transparency and win-win mutual
benefits, we established a mutual-reliance relationship with
staff to jointly promote the enterprise’s continuous and health

development.

Policy on remuneration and benefit

As of 31 March 2016, the Company and its subsidiaries employed
a total of 1,137 employees. The Group has established a
comprehensive management system of remuneration, motivation
and performance appraisal. Salary is commensurate with
employees’ position value, competence and performance and with
reference to the prevailing market conditions. Staff performance
is assessed in an appropriate manner and the outcome of which
will be reflected in remuneration and promotion. The Group
holds the health and well-being of its employees in high regard
by providing them with benefits in kind such as provident fund,
medical insurance, social pension insurance, education allowances

and training programmes.
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Development and training

The Group puts a strong emphasis on the recruitment and
nurturing of talents. During 2016, the Group stepped up the
recruitment of management personnel and professionals in the
logistics sector based on its development strategies and business
development requirements, in a bid to strengthen its management
and professional teams and optimise its staff mix. The Group also
places a strong emphasis on the training and appointment of
internal staff, whereby crucial employees who deliver outstanding
performance at work and show potential for development are

promoted to key positions of the Group.

The Group places a strong emphasis on staff training, and
encourages staff to enhance their abilities through continuous
training by the participation in various development and training
programmes to be provided by the Group on a yearly basis, so
as to build a high-calibre team of management personnel and

professionals compatible with the Group's business development.

The Group has compiled a staff manual and distributed to its
staff. The staff manual sets out the development history, structure,
future planning and corporate culture of the Group as well as the

conduct, rights and benefits of the staff.

Safety and health

The Group is always committed to providing a safe, efficient
and comfortable workplace for its staff. Through rational
arrangements, training and guidelines as well as the provision
of physical check-ups and education on occupational health, the
Group strives to ensure good health of its staff and provide a

good working environment.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) acknowledges

the need and importance of corporate governance as one of the
key elements in creating shareholders’ value. The Company is also
committed to achieving high standard of corporate governance
that can properly protect and promote the interests of all
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability of

the Company.

The Company strived to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance and complied with the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code") as stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing Securities on Main Board (the “Listing Rules”) of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the CG Code
as its own code of corporate governance. Save as the deviation
from the code provision A.2.1, separation of roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to code provision A.2.1 as
disclosed in the section “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”.
The board of directors (the “Board”) considers that the Company
was in compliance with all applicable code provisions set out in
the CG Code from 11 October 2013, being the date of listing of
the Company, to the date of this report.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s operation is

vested in the Board.

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters
of the Company, including the formulation and approval of
all policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitoring of the performance
of the senior management. The directors of the Company
("Directors”) make decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company. Currently, the Board comprises five Directors,
including two executive directors and three independent

non-executive directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yung Ka Chun

(resigned on 20 April 2015)
Mr. Chen Jinshan
Ms. Shum Ngai Pan

(appointed on 20 April 2015)
Ms. Yung Ka Lai

(appointed on 5 August 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Liang Yichi

Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Their biographical details and relationships among the
board members, if any are set out in the section entitled
"Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile” in the annual

report.
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Environmental, Social and Governan

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies
and management of the Group's businesses to the
executive Directors, senior management and certain specific

responsibilities to the Board committees.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. After former
Chairman Mr. Weng lJiaxing resigned from the Company,
there is no position of the chairman and chief executive

officer up to the date of the report.

The Company will, from time to time, review the
effectiveness of the Group's corporate governance
structure and consider whether any changes, including
the establishment of the roles of the chairman and chief

executive officer.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a service contract or
letter of appointment with the Company for a specific term.
Such term is subject to his or her re-appointment by the
Company at an annual general meeting upon such Director’s

retirement and offering himself for re-election.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third
of the Directors who have been longest in office since their
last election or re-election are also subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meeting. All retiring directors

are eligible for re-election.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, one of whom namely Mr. Wong Hon Kit possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications in accounting and
financial management. Each of the three independent non-
executive Directors has confirmed his independence of the
Company and the Company considers each of them to be
independent in accordance with the guidelines of assessing
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Each of the three independent non-executive Directors has
signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a

specific term of three years.

Training and Support for Directors
The Company encourages the Directors to participate in
professional development courses and seminars to develop

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Effective from 11 October 2013, the date of listing of the
Company, up to the date of this report, regulatory updates
and relevant materials on amendments of the Listing Rules
have been sent to the Directors for their awareness of the
latest development on regulatory requirements. Training

records of each Director will also be kept.

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
CG Code provision A.1.1 prescribes that at least four regular
Board meetings should be held each year at approximately
quarterly intervals with active participation of a majority of
the Directors, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board has held
9 meetings. All executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors attended the meeting. The Board will

schedule to have at least four regular meetings in a year.
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Attendance record of each director at the meetings of

the Board together with the meetings of the Audit,

Remuneration and Nomination and Corporate Governance

Committee during the year ended 31 March 2016 are set

out below.
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY, ERRY

Nomination

and Corporate

Audit Remuneration Governance

Board Committee Committee Committee

RER

Name of directors EERS EFg ENZA® FHZA® LEXELZA®

Executive directors BiTES

Mr. Yung Ka Chun SRELE N/ATE A N/ATE N/ATE A N/ATE

Mr. Chen Jin Shan AN 9/9 N/ATE A N/ATE A N/AT 8 A

Ms. Shum Ngai Pan® MBI K Ee 6/9 N/AT i A 23 N/ATiE A

Ms. Yung Ka Lai" fRBLL" 4/9 N/AT i A N/ATE B N/ATiE A
Independent non-executive BIFHTEE

directors

Mr. Liang Yichi R4 9/9 4/4 N/ATIE A 212

Mr. Wong Hon Kit HEGLE 9/9 4/4 33 212

Dr. Liu Yongping AETEL 9/9 4/4 373 212

e 8 Board meetings and 2 Remuneration Committee meeting @ RER=—FB—LFHEZEEETN

were held after her appointment on April 2015

August 2015

4 Board meetings were held after her appointment on 5
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Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance
The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the Directors to cover their liabilities arising out of

corporate activities.

Compliance with the Model Code for Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"”) since
11 October 2013, being the date of listing of the Company,
up to the date of this report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its model
code for securities transactions by Directors. Having made
specific inquiries, all the Directors confirmed that they have

complied with the Model Code up to the date of this report.

Board Committees

The Board has established an Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee (collectively “Board Committees”)
with defined terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board
Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate

circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 24 September
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.2.1 of the Listing Rules and a copy of which is posted
on the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Audit Committee’s current members include:

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Mr. Liang Yichi
Dr. Liu Yongping

All of the committee members are independent non-
executive Directors. The primary duties of the Audit

Committee include, but are not limited to:

(a) reviewing and monitoring the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable

standard;

(b) monitoring integrity of financial statements of
the Company and the Company’s annual report
and accounts, half-year report and if prepared for

publication, quarterly reports;

(c) reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk

management and internal control systems;

(d) reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the
code provisions as stated in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

The Audit Committee shall hold at least four regular
meetings in a year to review and discuss the two quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements of the Company.
Additional meetings of the Audit Committee may be held as

and when required.

The Audit Committee shall meet with the external auditor
at least twice a year. The external auditor may request a

meeting if they consider necessary.
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ZhEGHRESE

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Audit Committee

held four meetings.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management and
the Group's auditor the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed internal control and
financial reporting matters for the year ended 31 March
2016. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the annual
results for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be nominated for
appointment as the auditors of the Company at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 24
September 2013 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rule and a copy
of which is posted on the website of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee’s current

members include:

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Yung Ka Chun (appointed on 10 October 2014 and
resigned on 20 April 2015)

Ms. Shum Ngai Pan (appointed on 20 April 2015)
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The majority of the members are independent non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee
reviews the remuneration package of the executive
Directors, independent non-executive Directors and senior
management, and makes appropriate recommendations
to the Board. Staff remuneration is determined by the
Group’s management by reference to the individual staff’s
qualifications, work experience, performance and prevailing

market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet once during
the financial year. During the meeting, the Remuneration
Committee will review the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors and

senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during
the year ended 31 March 2016.

Nomination and Corporate Governance
Committee

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee
was established in 24 September 2013 with written terms
of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.1 and D.3.1
of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rule and a copy of which
is posted on the website of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Nomination and Corporate Governance

Committee’s current members include:

Mr. Liang Yichi
Mr. Wong Hon Kit
Dr. Liu Yongping

REBEZERBIUFITES -FMEE
EERITES BUFHTESIRSR
EEAEBZHMEB YAESSFHE
ERZ -BEIFMNBEAKEZEEESZ
BRET & THER RRERRT
mREEE -

GHEEENYREENART—RE
BoPHESREAE L ENRTES.
BYFATEEREREEARSHH
B o

BE—Z—-A"E=ZA=+—HLEE ¥
MEESCRIT=ZREE-

RERGRELRZAS

RERGCEEREEEEN =T —=

NWBZ+HmBERY  WEEFE LHmRE
M+ MEEAS 1 RD3 VR ZERESE
B HElAR R4 A B R B3 BT ok il & o
RERGEERZEEGZRENEEE:

R—EE
HEEGREE
FEFEL

BERRERBERRAF
2015/2016 Eﬁ& 35



The members are independent non-executive Directors. The

primary duties of the nomination and corporate governance

committee include, but are not limited to:

(a)

reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board on a regular basis and making recommendations

to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,

individuals nominated for directorship;

making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors in
particular the chairman of the Board and the chief

executive officer of the Company; and

keeping the effectiveness of the corporate governance

and system of internal controls of the Group.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee shall

meet once during the financial year. During the meeting,

the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee will

review the structure and composition (including the skills,

knowledge and experience) of the Board.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee held

two meetings during the year ended 31 March 2016.
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Environmental, Social and Governanc

Conflict of Interest

If a Director has a conflict of interest in relation to a
transaction or proposal to be considered by the Board, the
individual is required to declare such interest and to abstain
from voting. The matter is considered at a Board meeting
attended by Directors who have no material interest in the

transaction.

The Group also adopted certain internal control policies to

manage potential conflicts of interest.

Company Secretary

Mr. Tsang Wai Wa (“"Mr. Tsang”), the company secretary
of the Company, is a full time employee of the Group and
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs. Mr.
Tsang duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The
biographical details of the company secretary is set out in
the section entitled “Directors and Senior Management

Profile” in the annual report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the financial controller and the
finance and accounts department of the Company are
responsible for the preparation of accounts for each financial
period which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the year
ended 31 March 2016, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, adopted
appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards, made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and have
prepared the accounts on a going concern basis. The
Directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which reflect the financial information of the Group

with reasonable accuracy.
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External Auditor's Remuneration

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has been appointed
as the Company’s external auditor since the Company’s
incorporation. The Audit Committee has been notified of
the nature and the service charges of non-audit services
performed by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited and
considered that these non-audit services have no adverse
effect on the independence of the auditor. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of

the external auditor.

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor,
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 March

2016 is set out below:

nental, Social and Governance Report
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Amount (HK$'000)

Nature of services REHE &B|(FB/XT)
Audit services BRI 987
Internal Control and Risk Management Systems MBERRRBEERE R

The Group's internal control and risk management systems
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems.
In 2015, the Board, through the Audit Committee, has
reviewed and is satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy
of the internal control and risk management systems of the

Group.

The Board will review the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting

function annually.
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Environmental, Social and Governan

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group's business
performance and strategies. The Group also recognises
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enable shareholders and

investors to make appropriate investment decisions.

The members of the Board, Board Committees and the
external auditor are present to answer shareholders’
questions in the annual general meeting of the Company.
Meeting circulars are distributed to all shareholders before
the annual general meeting and special general meetings in
accordance with the timeline requirement as laid down in
the Listing Rules and the bye-laws of the Company. All the
resolutions proposed to be approved at the general meetings
will be taken by poll and poll voting results will be published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

after the meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the
Group maintains a website where information on the
Company’'s announcements, financial information and
other information are posted. Shareholders and investors
may write directly to the Company at its principal place of

business in Hong Kong with any inquiries.
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ShERRESE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the
Company, such as telephone number, fax number, email
address and postal address, in order to enable them to make
any query that they may have with respect to the Company.
They can also send their enquiries to the Board through
these means. In addition, shareholders can contact the share
registrar of the Company, if they have any enquires about

their shareholdings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and

the Company after each shareholder meeting.

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings, and the
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition,
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the

deposit of such requisition.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents since incorporation on 9 July 2012 and up to 31
March 2016.
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Environmental, Soci

Over the years, the Group has been holding the operation vision
of "Honesty and morality go first”, adhere to the operation
objective of "Benefiting the society and the populace” to provide
healthy products and services as its mission, conduct capital
expansion as its measures, and supported by corporate culture
construction. The Group's market size is expanding gradually and
is building a leading service brand image within the industry to
become a leading pharmaceutical distribution model enterprise in

Fujian with core competitiveness.
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f the Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Wanjia Group Holdings
Limited (the “"Company”) has pleasure in presenting to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) its report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2016.

DATE OF INCORPORATION
The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 9 July

2012 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
by way of introduction on 11 October 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in pharmaceutical wholesales
and distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain business in
the People’s Republic of China (the “"PRC"). Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 24 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 and
the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 March 2016 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 68 of this

report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2016.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 212 of
this report. The summary does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group did not further invest in investment property during
the year. Details of the movements in investment properties of the
Group during the year are set out in note 20 to the consolidated

financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment at cost of
approximately HK$3.957 million during the year. Details of the
movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity on page 69 respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman lIslands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-

rata basis to existing shareholders.
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A
of the Directors

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there were no purchase,
sale or redemption of the Company's listed securities by the

Company or any of its subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The Group's largest customer accounted for approximately 5.91%
of the Group’s revenue and the Group’s five largest customers in

aggregate accounted for approximately 16.78%.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the aggregate amount
of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented approximately 27.33% of the Group’s total value
of purchases. The Group's largest supplier accounted for

approximately 7.59% of the Group’s total value of purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders, which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interests in the share

capital of the five largest customers and suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the year

and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Yung Ka Chun (resigned on 20 April 2015)
Mr. Chen Jinshan

Ms. Shum Ngai Pan (appointed on 20 April 2015)

Ms. Yung Ka Lai (appointed on 5 August 2015)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Liang Yichi

Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping
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In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Ms. Yung Ka Lai, the executive director of the
Company, will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Liang Yichi and Mr. Chen Jinshan, the
independent non-executive director and the executive director of
the Company, will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election at the forth coming annual general meeting.

All other Directors will continue in office.

The biographical details of the directors and senior management
are set on pages 18 to 22 of this annual report. Details of the
emoluments of the directors and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Chen Jinshan, has been appointed as an executive Director
of the Company by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of 1 year commencing on 10 October 2014
which will continue thereafter until terminated by either party

giving to the other party at least 1 month'’s notice in writing.
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> Directors

Ms. Shum Ngai Pan has been appointed as an executive Director
of the Company by way of a service contract with the Company
for a term of 1 year commencing on 20 April 2015 which will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the

other party at least 1 month’s notice in writing.

Ms. Yung Ka Lai has been appointed as an executive Director of
the Company by way of a service contract with the Company for a
term of 1 year commencing on 5 August 2015 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party at least 1 month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Liang Yichi has been appointed as independent non-executive
Directors of the Company by way of letters of appointment
with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing from 4
September 2012 which will continue thereafter until either
the independent non-executive Director or the Company may
terminate the agreement by giving the other party not less than 3

months’ notice in writing.

Mr. Wong Hon Kit has been appointed as independent non-
executive Directors of the Company by way of letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing
from 11 April 2013 which will continue thereafter until either
the independent non-executive Director or the Company may
terminate the agreement by giving the other party not less than 3

months’ notice in writing.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

46

MBHLZTEBARAURBENEZEREA
AMITES BE-ZE-AFNAZ-THEBFS
H-F UHRERETE EEEMN-FE5
—FEREEAIR—ERAZEEBEHNLLERIL-

SEBLICRALAURBENEERER
AMTES B-Z—HAFN\AEHEHAS
—F UHBRERET BEEEA-—FEA%—
FEHAIPR—ER2EMBHR LRI

R-MALECEARAUZEEZER/ELT
BYFATES BT -—-FhLhADEB®LF
ABP=F UKRHREET EEBIFEHT
EEFARAOE—FERTADIR=ERZE
EHBAELLEHERL-

HEERATECEARAUZEEZAERALT
BYFHTEE B-E-—=FNA+—HE
ARM=F UHERERET BEEBYEH
TESFIARA[NE -—FRHREFPIR=@AZ
EEBHRLHRERIL



Dr. Liu Yongping has been appointed as independent non-
executive Directors of the Company by way of letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing
from 27 February 2014 which will continue thereafter until either
the independent non-executive Director or the Company may
terminate the agreement by giving the other party not less than 3

months’ notice in writing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the heading “Continuing connected
transactions”, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interests whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS
A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity
against liability incurred by Directors is currently in force and was

in force throughout the year ended 31 March 2016.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on merit,

qualifications and competence of employees.

The remuneration policies of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the Group’s operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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Report of the Directors
EESHRSE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

Disclosure of Interests

(a) Directors’ interests and short position in the securities
of the Company and its associated corporations
As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares of the Company (“Shares”), underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which will have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein or which will be required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) contained in
the Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing Rules,

were as follows:

(i) Director’s interests in shares of the Company
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Approximate

percentage
Number of the total
Name of director Nature of interests of shares Position issued shares
HEBT
Bip#E#Z
EElkR EENHHE B8 B 43 ghaak
Ms. Yung Ka Lai Corporate interests 47,009,375 Long 7.25%
(Note)
SEBELL NE R (M) 3y

Note: Ms. Yung Ka Lai holds the Company’s shares through
Power King Investment Development Limited.
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(i) Interests in issued share capital of the Company’s (i) REREEELEEBHTRAZE

associated corporation =
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the associated
corporation’s
Name of Number issued
Name of director associated corporation Nature of interests of shares Position share capital
REBER
ERTRERH
EERf HHEERE e g Bin#E B RigEENES L
Mr. Chen Jinshan Hua Xia (Note 1) Beneficial interests 4,410,000 Long 0.26%
(Note 3)
Relxx 27 (1) ERER (M&E3)  #&
Ms. Shum Ngai Pan Hua Xia (Note 1) Beneficial interests 6,450,000 Long 0.38%
(Note 3)
DIE e 23 (Ma) EngR (H&E3) #2
Note 1: Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua Xia"). Mz HEERBEEEERAT ([
g

Note 2: represented 4,410,000 share options of the MfsE2 : $84,410,00017 248 1 &) #8 B 5k
Company'’s associated corporation. B~ BB -

Note 3: represented 2,400,000 shares in the issued share MisE3: IEAAAEBEED RITR
capital of the Company’s associated corporation and AR H 22,400,000 B 2 &
4,050,000 share option of the Company's associated 4,050,00017 A 1 =) M8 B &
corporation. ZHERE-
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(b)

50

the Directors

Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares

As at 31 March 2016, other than the interests of a director
or chief executive of the Company as disclosed under
the heading “Directors’ and chief executive’'s interests in
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the company
and its associated corporations” above, the following
persons (not being a Director or the chief executive officer
of the Company) have an interests or a short position in
Shares or underlying Shares which would be required to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register to be kept by the

Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

(i) Long position in shares of the Company

(b) EERFERERMRERKRBZER R

RE

RZE-—RE=ZA=+—-H KBLEX[E
ERTETBRAERERARAREEE X
BziRe - HERDREEE 2ER | —
HAEERALAAEESRFTETHAEZ
BN UTAL (RRATZESRITH
HERRRIN) AL B IR 19 SRABRA IR 19
ERBEFFRAERGIEXVEE2R %3
DR BB RN T REERTIRE X
AL BRIEE F KB R0 5F3360%
FEzECMzERRAR:

() FERARGZHE

Approximate

percentage
Number of the total
Name of shareholder Capacity Position of shares issued shares
HERT
BinHEEz
BEEE HE 53 B8 E -£is L oN=R" 014
Hua Xia (Note 1) Interested in controlled Long 411,917,648 63.53%
corporation
#=5 (1) REEFEENES #eE
Greatly Wealth (Note 1) Beneficial owner Long 411,917,648 63.53%
RE (MFEET) BEREEA e
Power King (Note 2) Beneficial owner Long 47,009,375 7.25%
Power King (Hf&E2) EREEA HE
Ms. Yung Ka Lai Interested in controlled Long 47,009,375 7.25%
(Note 2) corporation
SEBELZT (MEF2) REEFEENER e
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Approximate

percentage
Number of the total
Name of shareholder Capacity Position of shares issued shares
HERT
Bin@EZ
BRERE H4E 47 Bin& B R i3 BHESE
Mr. Lo Kai Bong Interested in controlled Long 90,000,000 13.88%
(Note 3) corporation (Note 5)
ERFAEE (MEE3) REESEENER e (P5ES)
Better Linkage Limited Interested in controlled Long 90,000,000 13.88%
(Note 3) corporation (Note 5)
Better Linkage Limited REEFEENES #aE (MFEES)
(FI=E3)
Ever Smart Capital Beneficial owner Long 90,000,000 13.88%
Limited (Note 3) (Note 5)
Ever Smart Capital BREEEA e (BF&ES)
Limited (BFf3E3)
Mr. Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley Interested in controlled Long 122,000,000 18.82%
(Note 4) corporation
BB AL (HFE4) REEHEENER e
Ms. Cheung Fung Kuen, Interested in controlled Long 122,000,000 18.82%
Maggie (Note 4) corporation
REIE 2T (KiEE4) REEHEENER i)
Grand Rich Limited Interested in controlled Long 122,000,000 18.82%
(Note 4) corporation
Grand Rich Limited REESEENER e
(FfF5E4)
Head & Shoulders Credit  Beneficial owner Long 122,000,000 18.82%
Limited (Note 4)
Head & Shoulders Credit EXEAE A e
Limited (F¥&E4)
BEESEERARLR 5"
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Greatly Wealth Global Group Limited (”“Greatly
Wealth”) is a company incorporated in the BVI with
limited liability which is wholly and beneficially owned
by Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua Xia"). By
virtue of the SFO, Hua Xia is deemed to be interested
in the entire 411,917,648 shares held by the Greatly
Wealth.

Power King Investment Development Limited (“Power
King”) is a company incorporated in the BVI with
limited liabilities which is wholly and beneficially owned
by Ms. Yung Ka Lai.

Ever Smart Capital Limited (“Ever Smart”) is a
company incorporated in the BVI with limited liabilities
which is wholly and beneficially owned by Better
Linkage Limited (“Better Linkage”), a company
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability and is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lo Kai Bong (“Mr.
Lo"). By virtue of the SFO, both Better Linkage and Mr.
Lo are deemed to be interested in the entire 90,000,000
shares held by Ever Smart.

Head & Shoulders Credit Limited ("Head &
Shoulders”) is a company incorporated in the BVI
with limited liabilities which is wholly and beneficially
owned by Grand Rich Limited (“Grand Rich”), a
company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability
and is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Choi Chiu
Fai, Stanley (“Mr. Choi”) and Ms. Cheung Fung Kuen,
Maggie (“Ms. Cheung”). By virtue of the SFO, Grand
Rich, Mr. Choi and Ms. Cheung are all deemed to be
interested in the entire 122,000,000 shares held by
Head & Shoulders.

On 1 June 2015, convertible notes amounting to
HK$58,500,000 were issued to Ever Smart, entitling the
holder of the convertible notes to convert 90,000,000
Shares of the Company.
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(i) Long position in shares of the associated corporation

(i) RIGECEER G ZIHE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Number of  the associated

shares in corporation’s

Name of associated ~ Name of the associated issued

corporation registered owner Capacity Position corporation share capital

REREE

BRTREH

REBRER BB 1E

HHEERE BRGAASH 54 BfI FERiZ&E #Hhaskt

Greatly Wealth Hua Xia Beneficial owner Long 200 shares 100%
of US$1 each

N #5 BREBA #e 200 8K 100%
ABEIERT
KRR 1

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, the directors
of the Company were not aware of any other person (other
than the directors and chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive's interests in shares, underlying shared and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations” above, at no
time since incorporation of the Company were right to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or of any other body corporate granted to any
directors or their respective spouses or children under 18 years
of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors, their respective spouse
or children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in any

other body corporate.
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A
of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 24 September 2013, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board can
grant options for the subscription of our shares to the employees,
managerial staff and senior employees and those other persons
that the Board considers that they will contribute or have
contributed to the Group (the “Participants”) as described in
the Share Option Scheme in order to serve as compliment and
to reciprocate their contribution to the Group. The maximum
number of shares that can be issued according to the Share
Option Scheme was 64,840,530 shares, which is equivalent to
10% of the issued capital of the Company after completion of the
Listing on the Stock Exchange. The number of options that may
be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares immediately after
the completion of the Listing. Unless otherwise approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting, the number of
shares that may be granted to a Participant under the options shall
not exceed 1% within any 12-month period (other than those
granted to the substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company or the independent non-executive Directors
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules)), or the total number of shares that may be granted under
the options to the substantial shareholders of the Company or
the independent non-executive Directors or any of their respective
associates shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue of the
Company from time to time. There is no minimum period that the
options must be held before they become exercisable, and the
options granted shall be exercised within the period decided by
the Board; however no options shall be exercised 10 years after
they have been granted. The exercise price of the option shall
be the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares on the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b)
the average closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) nominal value of the share.
Each grantee shall pay a consideration of HK$1.00 at the time the
option is granted. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from
the date it is adopted and shall remain effective within a period of
10 years from that date.
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Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no options have

been granted up to the date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain connected transactions which are significant are also
disclosed as related party transactions (see note 43 to the

consolidated financial statements).

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into a number of transactions with
connected parties which, upon the listing of the Shares on the
Stock Exchange, became connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. These transactions are continuing
connected transactions exempt from the independent
shareholder’s approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions are as follows:

Rental agreement with Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical
Chain Company Limited (“FHP Chain")

Tenancy Agreement 1

On 4 December 2014, Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao
Pharmaceutical Company Limited (the “Fujian Huihao”), an
indirectly-owned subsidiary of the Company and FHP Chain
entered a new tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement 1”)
for the rental of (i) Level 1 and Level 4 of the office building
located at No. 8 Huihao Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian,
Fujian Province, the PRC (the “Property 1) with a gross floor
area (“GFA") approximately 1,268 square meter (“sq.m.”); and
(ii) Levels 1 to 3 of the warehouse building located at No. 8
Huihao Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian, the PRC (the
"Property 2") with a GFA of approximately 9,852 sq.m.. The term
of the lease is from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2018 with a rental
of RMB10,144 per month for the Property 1 and RMB49,260 per
month for the Property 2 and is renewable upon the signing of a

new rental agreement.
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f the Directors

Tenancy Agreement 2

On 4 December 2014, Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain
Company Limited (the “Huihao Sihai”), an indirectly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and FHP Chain entered a new tenancy
agreement (“Tenancy Agreement 2") for the rental of (i) Level
3 of the office building located at No.8 Huihao Road, Shangjie
Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC (the “Property 3")
with a GFA of approximately 600 sg.m.; and (ii) Level 4 of the
warehouse building located on No.8 Huihao Road, Shangjie Town,
Minhou Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC (the “Property 4") with
a GFA of approximately 3,284 sq.m.. The term of the lease is
from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2018 with a rental of RMB4,800
per month for the Property 3 and RMB16,420 per month for the
Property 4 and is renewable upon the signing of the new rental

agreement.

FHP Chain was held as to 50% of its issued share capital by Mr.
Weng lJiale who is a cousin of both Ms. Yung Ka Lai (“Ms. Yung")
and Mr. Yung Ka Chun (“Mr. Yung”). Ms. Yung and Mr. Yung
are siblings, Ms. Yung is the executive director of the Group and
Mr. Yung is a substantial shareholder of Hua Xia and is therefore
a connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.11(4) of the
Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the annual cap, also the
total rental charge paid, for the Group’s total transaction amount
with FHP Chain contemplated under the Tenancy Agreement 1
is RMB712,848 (equivalent to approximately HK$873,239) and
Tenancy Agreement 2 is RMB254,640 (equivalent to approximately
HK$311,934).
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Rental agreements entered with Yung Muk Ying (the mother
of Yung Ka Lai) (“Ms. Yung”)

Tenancy Agreement 3

On 4 December 2014, Putian Huihao Medicine Co. Limited* (&
EEHEHBEARDT) (“Putian Huihao”), an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy
agreement (“Tenancy Agreement 3”) with Ms. Yung which
for rental of (i) Level 1 of which is located at No. 1466, 1470,
1476 Xiadian Road, GongChen Street, Licheng District, Putian
City, Fujian Province, China (“Property 5”) with a GFA of
approximately 169.81 sq.m.; and (ii) Level 2 of which is located at
No. 1466, 1470, 1476 Xiadian Road, GongChen Street, Licheng
District, Putian City, Fujian Province, China (“Property 6") with a
GFA of approximately 192.86 sq.m.. The term of the lease is from
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2018 with a rental of RMB3,396.2 per
month for Property 5 and RMB1,928.6 per month for Property 6

and is renewable upon the signing of the new rental agreement.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the annual cap, also the
total rental charge paid, for the Group's total transaction amount
with Ms. Yung contemplated under the Tenancy agreement 3 is
RMB63,897 (equivalent to approximately HK$78,253).
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he Directors

The independent non-executive directors of the Company, Mr.
Liang Yichi, Mr. Wong Hon Kit and Dr. Liu Yongping have, for
the purpose of Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that such
continuing connected transactions, for the reporting period, have

been entered into:
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate)

independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions and on terms that are fair and reasonable and in

the interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company'’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Review of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The Company’s auditors have issue their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited, Greatly Wealth
Global Group Limited, Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, Marshal
International Investments Limited and Easeglory Holdings Limited
(together as the “Controlling Shareholders”) had entered into
a deed of non-competition dated 30 September 2013 (the “"Deed
of Non-Competition”) in favour of the Company (for itself and
on behalf of all members of the Group), pursuant to which, each
of the Controlling Shareholders would not, and would use his/its
best endeavours to procure his/its associates (except any members
of our Group) not to directly or indirectly carry on, engage,
participate or hold any right or interest in or render any services to
or otherwise be interested and/or involved (in each case whether
as shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and whether for profit,
reward or otherwise) in any business which may be in competition
with the business carried on by the Group from time to time,

except where the Company’s approval is obtained.

Details of the Deed of Non-Competition are set out in the section
headed “Relationship with Hua Xia Group and Connected Persons

— Non-Competition Deed” of the Prospectus.

The Company confirms that each of the Controlling Shareholders
have complied with the Deed of Non-Competition from the
date of listing up until 31 March 2016. In order to ensure the
Controlling Shareholders have complied with the Deed of Non-
Competition, each of the Controlling Shareholders have provided
to the Company a written confirmation that they and their
respective associates are in compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition and except through any member of the Group, did
not directly or indirectly, carry on or hold any right or interests in
or render any services to, or is otherwise involved in, any business
which may be in competition with the business carried on by the

Group from the date of listing up until 31 March 2016.

R

EEBEREEERAT ARRREEBRLD
A-FESALE BHERREERATARS
BERERLT (FHERREEEER
“E-=ZFAAZHTHRTUURRF (BER
BRRRAEEREREQXR) AZHEAZL
BEZE ([FRIRE]) - Blt SERERR
TEURBEAE N RELBEA (FAEEE
ARERBRN) TEEEREEET 28
SHEFFAARETRERNEBET ZEBER
BEZAEMEBR 2EANREZHOERHEEM
BRBIUAEMSTARAEFEEEATESZR R
BREP (EERRTHTRETURR -5
BA-REIEMEH FTAREERHERF
B EmREME )  EREADERIENE
SRS

THERECHBHNERER[RESTEE
FEABEATHWER-THFRE] -

AAFER BLmABMEE_ZT-—X<FE=A
=St+t-HBL ZERBRECEEETIREZR
B-ARRERRRCETIRIZE |
BBERCEAQAFEEEORAFREREEE
BHEACBIIREFRERRIFBBAEET
ARE UEEERBEETIHFEIEB L
THSMBERE-_E-—AXEZA=+—HLELXE
BT 2 EBBRBRF ZEMER Z EAEF
RSO HRETARERIUAELMTNS K
Hro

EREEEBRERAR
2015/2016 &R

o



.
of the Directors

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
also reviewed the status of the compliance by each of the
Controlling Shareholders with the undertakings in the Deed
of Non-Competition and have confirmed that, as far as they
can ascertain, there is no breach by any of the Controlling
Shareholders of the undertakings in the Deed of Non-Competition

given by them.

As of the date of this report, the Company is not aware of any
other matters regarding the compliance of the undertakings in the
Deed of Non-Competition and there have not been any changes in
terms of the Deed of Non-Competition since the Company’s listing

of shares on the Stock Exchange.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company as applied the code provisions set out in the
CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since
its listing on the Stock Exchange, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code for the year ended 31
March 2016, save for the exceptions explained in the Corporate

Governance Report in this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
During the Year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the

Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on publicly available
information and the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has sufficient public float as required under Rule 8.08 of

the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period

are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2016 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited who will retire at the forthcoming annual general

meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Jinshan

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 16 June 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report
18 3 1% S ED R S

31/F, Gloucester Tower &b

BT 3t @ FH AR A A The Landmark R
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited 11 Pedder Street SEITH1158
Central B i E %
Hong Kong HHELTITRE3E

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 65 to
211, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors” judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
18 3 1% S ED R S

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2016, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: P06417
Hong Kong, 16 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEakEMEERKGE R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

2016 2015
—Z—REF —E-hF
Note HK$000 HK$'000
Ff =% THET FET
Revenue & 8 1,321,763 1,567,687
Cost of sales §H & AN (1,175,635) (1,407,842)
Gross profit EX 146,128 159,845
Other revenue H fth Uy 2 9 5,000 6,379
Other gain/(loss), net Habuzs, (E58)  FEE 10 2,530 (202)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREESE 21 - (785,169)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BHBARZER 26 (772) =
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (100,466) (90,590)
Administrative expenses THRAX (48,359) (46,774)
Profit/(loss) from operations EEEERA (H#R) 11 4,061 (756,511)
Finance costs MHER 12 (16,365) (8,819)
Loss before taxation FRIRAER (12,304) (765,330)
Taxation I8 15 (1,158) (7,950)
Loss for the year EEEGR (13,462) (773,280)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FFEEHRM2ME (E5iE)
for the year A
Items that may be reclassified IRAEZBENHEZE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmoHEE :
Exchange differences on translating of REGINEEEE ZE X =58
foreign operations (18,924) 1,423
Total comprehensive loss AEEREGIEEHE
for the year (32,386) (771,857)
BEESEERARLR
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FmeBmRkEMEERKER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—"F=A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—-RF —E-AF
Note HK$'000 HK$’'000
M =F THET TET
Loss for the year attributable to: BiEFEEEGR:
Owners of the Company RATEE A (13,802) (772,949)
Non-controlling interests R ER 340 (331)
(13,462) (773,280)
Total comprehensive loss BlEFEFEREEBGREHE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company RATEE A (29,935) (771,526)
Non-controlling interests FEERER (2,451) (331)
(32,386) (771,857)
Loss per share attributable to EAFIHBAELSRE
owners of the Company: BiR:
— Basic (HK cents per share) —EAR (BRBEAW) 17 (2.13) (119.21)
— Diluted (HK cents per share) — 5 (8RBW) 17 (2.13) (119.21)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ra

AR 5 3R

As at 31 March 2016 A=Z— ~xF=H=1+—H

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RHEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BT &E FE&xT FHE T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- -BRERZE 18 18,384 22,522
Prepaid lease payments FENHEEMRE 19 11,347 4,342
Investment property REWE 20 7,199 8,093
Goodwill (EES 21 342 2,213
37,272 37,170
Current assets mEEE
Inventories 7E 22 107,578 124,849
Trade and other ESRHEMERK
receivables and deposits RERZE 23 284,171 428,686
Amounts due from fellow A EEN I EPNGTE
subsidiaries 27 8,181 8,621
Amount due from the immediate FE U B 235 IR A Rl ;IE
holding company 28 - 15
Pledged bank deposits 2 ARITER 29 6,096 12,970
Cash and cash equivalents HENBEELEEEE 29 203,500 43,029
609,526 618,170
Current liabilities mEBAE
Trade and other payables BN EME(TFE 30 233,078 242,117
Amount due to the ultimate A RAZER R 7
holding company 31 485 4,515
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ASIGEN =G E 32 10,802 =
Bank borrowings IRITIEE 33 32,396 121,454
Tax payables FE 13 % 18 1,683 4,210
278,444 372,296
Non-current liabilities EREBIAR
Convertible note R EE 34 77,267 =
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEEE 35 563 =
77,830 -
Net current assets mEEERE 331,082 245,874
Total assets less current liabilities SEHERTDAR 368,354 283,044
EREEREEBRAR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B R R &R

As at 31 March 2016 R=Z—~"F=A=+—H

2016 2015

—E—-RE —ZE-IF

Note HK$'000 HK$’'000

M =F THET TET

Net assets EESE 290,524 283,044

Capital and reserves BE R

Share capital % A% 36 6,484 6,484

Reserves (E] 216,260 267,297
Equity attributable to owners of AABEE AEERER

the Company 222,744 273,781

Non-controlling interests R ER 67,780 9,263

Total equity BaWE 290,524 283,044

The consolidated financial statements were approved and GEUBBRERR-T—~"E~ATBHHES

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 June 2016

and signed on its behalf by:

Chen JinShan

Executive Director

Yung Ka Lai

Executive Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

GERREHR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZ=ZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owner of the Company

LG PN
Retained
earnings/ Non-
Share Share Other  Contribution  Translation Statutory ~ Convertible (accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  note reserve losses) Sub-total interests Total
TRERE  RERH/
23 RiER Rl (38 ] EREH ERER B (RHER) Mt FERHE #it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fign Fign Fign Fign TR T TR TR THx FEn FiEn
(Note 36) (Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d) (Note e) (Note f)
(HzE36) (Hita) (Kitb) (Mic) (Hitd) (Bite) (Hf3f)
Asat 1 April 2014 R-E-MEMA-A 6,484 (7,653) (6,483) 866,311 15,938 29,128 - 141,082 1,045,307 416 1,045,723
Loss for the year rEEFR - - - - - - (772,949) (772,949) (331) (773,280)
Other comprehensive income REEEB2ERA
for the year - - - 1,423 - - - 1423 - 1423
Total comprehensive incomef(loss) KEE2ARA/ (BB 8E
for the year - - - - 1423 - - (772,949) (771,526) (331) (771,857)
Non-controlling interests arising on the RRBHELDEEZ
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 25) FERRES (BHeE2s) - - - - - B B = 9,178 9,178
Transfer to statutory reserve BRZIERE - - - - - 2,061 - (2,061) - - -
As at 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 R=ZB-EF=A=+-AR
“E-1§MA-A 6,484 (7,653) (6,483) 866,811 17,361 31,189 = (633,928) 273,781 9,263 283,044
Loss for the year KEEEE - - - - - - - (13,802) (13,802) 340 (13,462)
Other comprehensive loss for the year REEHM2AFE - - - - (16,133) - - - (16,133) @2,791) (18,924)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEERAFREE - - - (16,133) - - (13,802) (29,935) (2,451) (32,386)
Deemed disposal of interests in a subsidiary 4t & — BB A 7 2 i - - (29,208) - - - - - (29,208) 63,409 34,01
Additional interests in a subsidiary R-ENEL R EMER - - 550 - - - - - 550 (550) =
Disposal of subsidiary (Note 26) HERBAT (Hit2e) - - - (139) - - - (139) (1,891) (2,030
Issue of convertible note BTTARRE - - - - - 9,624 - 9,624 - 9,624
Deferred taxation of convertible note TRREEZELHRE - - - - - - (1,929) - (1,929) - (1,929)
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTETRE - - - - 724 B (124) = = =
At 31 March 2016 RZZ-REZA=+-H 6,484 (7.653) (35,141) 866,811 1,089 31,913 7,695 (648,454) 222,744 67,780 290,524
Notes: i 3
(a) Share premium (a) B {7 & (8
The amount of approximately HK$7,653,000 represents the #7,653,000/8 T 2 LREIERARRHR =
capitalised listing expenses arised from the listing of the shares of —=5+At+—BEBBHAERSMEBRA
the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong MBI ERETEEZERLES
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 11 October 2013. B e
(b) Other reserve (b) Hfth 6% i§

The other reserve represented the difference between the
Company's shares of nominal value of the paid-up capital of
subsidiaries acquired over the Company's cost of acquisition of the
subsidiaries under common control upon the reorganization.

On 12 May 2015, the Group disposed 25% equity interest of
Fuzhou Province Huihao City Huihao Pharmaceutical Co. Limited
(“Fuzhou Huihao”) by way of increasing the registered capital
of Fuzhou Huihao from RMB60,000,000 to RMB80,000,000.
The non-controlling interests of Fuzhou Huihao agreed to pay
RMB20,000,000 for the increase capital of Fuzhou Huihao. The
Group recognised a decrease in other reserve of approximately
HK$29,208,000.

Htt#FBIEAARMUEHNE QR RMAES
Z PR A7 T B B AR N B) B B AR R UK AL (R 4
MEARZRAKEEE

REZZE-—HFERA+=-A AEEEBEE
EEEMNmEFEEBRAR ([BMELF])
ZHEMEARRARE60,000,0007TEINE A
F#80,000,000t 2 H R MHERMELEF 2
5% B - BMBF 2 EREZRZELE
M E 5712 E X F AR #20,000,0007T o A&
) e 3R HL th 5% 4088 £ 29,208,000 7t ©

EESERRERLAR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
mEREEER
For the year ended 31 March 2016 & —F—~"F=H=+—HIFE

Notes: — continued

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Other reserve — continued
On 9 September 2015, the Group further acquired 0.51%
equity interest of Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical China
Company Limited (“Huihao Sihai”) by the way of capital injection
the registered capital, as a result other reserve was increased
approximately HK$550,000.

Contribution reserve

Capitalisation of the outstanding amount of approximately
HK$866,811,000 due from Timely Hero Enterprises Limited
(“Timely Hero”) to Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua
Xia") on 3 September 2013 in consideration of (i) the allotment
and issue 1 share of US$1 in the share capital of Timely Hero to
Luxuriant Expand Global Investment Limited (“Luxuriant Expand”),
credited as fully paid up, at the direction of Hua Xia; and (ii) the
allotment and issue of a total of 100 shares of US$1 each in the
share capital of Luxuriant Expand, all credited as fully paid up, to
Hua Xia in consideration of its receipt of 1 share in Timely Hero
at the direction of Hua Xia. Details of the reorganisation were set
out in the paragraph headed “The Reorganisation” in the section
headed “Corporate history, development and Reorganisation” in
the prospectus dated 30 September 2013.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 3.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by the relevant People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
laws and regulations, the subsidiaries of the Company establishing
in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its net profit after taxation
for the statutory surplus reserve fund (except where the reserve
balances has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ paid up capital).
The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the Board
of Directors and by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated
losses or increase capital.

Convertible note reserve

The convertible note reserve represents the equity components
of the convertible note issued. Convertible note issued are split
into their liability and equity components at initial recognition at
the fair values of the convertible note, which is determined by
independent qualified professional valuers.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZ=ZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M & THET TET
Operating activities BEXK
Loss before taxation BR %5 A E5 18 (12,304) (765,330)
Adjustments for: FEIEHE :
Interest income FMEW A (220) (1,131)
Interest expenses FE B & 16,365 8,819
Amortisation of prepaid FENHEERIEEH
lease payments 365 188
Depreciation of property, Y BMERRERTE
plant and equipment 6,449 5,085
Provision for impairment loss on B 5 &k H b fE W FOIE R E
trade and other receivables EEEE 1,176 3,961
Reversal of impairment loss of B 5 & H b FE R IR R E
trade and other receivables 518 3 [0 (683) (130)
Impairment loss on goodwill EmERERSE - 785,169
Loss on disposal of subsidiary HEHNB AR ZEE 26 772 =
Change in fair value of REWMELNFELE
investment property 490 252
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BRERREZ
plant and equipment B 337 80
Operating cash flows before EEEcEHNBERARE
movements in working capital 12,747 36,963
Decrease in inventories FERD 16,132 15,564
Decrease in trade and other ESZREMEBERFIER
receivables and deposits BEmD 157,463 30,484
Decrease in trade and other payables 2 5 & H i f& 4 Z 18R 2 (5,514) (62,965)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due FEUR [E R KT B A 7]
from fellow subsidiaries RIERD () 11,242 (5,665)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from EWEBIZER A T
the immediate holding company MIER A () 15 (10)
Decrease in amount due to FE A — R BfY /BB 2 B BE AR
non-controlling shareholders of % 3R R IE R A
a subsidiary - (134)
Decrease in amounts due to fellow EARRK B R
subsidiaries FIER D - (1,032)
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to B BAER A TRIE
the ultimate holding company (R A ) /12 hn (4,030) 507
Decrease of financial asset at fair RATEEEREREZ
value through profit or loss B EERD - 1,259
Cash generated from operations XBMBERE 188,055 14,971
PRC enterprise income tax paid EHEMNPEEMRER (4,469) (14,394)
Net cash generated from BREXBREHARH
operating activities 183,586 577
BEESEERARLR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Eﬁ%/)lbi%

n‘/-ﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—"F=A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
— R —E-FHfF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
F 5 FTHET THET
Investing activities BEER
Interest received 2R E 220 1,131
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE BRERKE
equipment (3,957) (15,072)
Additions of prepaid lease payment TR E IR AN (7,934) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE BRERREZ
plant and equipment {8 RIE - 124
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary HEWB QR MERE 2,107 =
Deemed disposal of interest RIELE—BHBRARZ
in a subsidiary = 16,314 =
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WENBARZ
subsidiaries e FEE - (5,073)
Net cash generated from/(used in) R ZEEEBRE (FA)
investing activities H&s# 6,750 (18,890)
Financing activities AR EE
Interest paid 2R E (11,699) (8,819)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits 2K 1 4R 1T 7 OB 2 6,874 4,461
Proceeds from new bank borrowings R IT AT B REIE 97,341 153,067
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (186,399) (132,257)
Net proceeds from convertible note AR RIS TS I F R 82,225 =
Net cash (used in)/generated from FBIEEFEE (FiA) g
financing activities B&R@E (11,658) 16,452
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HERRESSEIEH
cash equivalents B/ (RD)R#E 178,678 (1,861)
Cash and cash equivalents FNZHeRBE&£EE
at the beginning of the year HH 43,029 43,638
Effect of foreign exchange HNEEXSB 2HE
rate changes (18,207) 1,252
Cash and cash equivalents FRZOSRBEE£FE
at the end of the year HH 203,500 43,029
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMMIEAZE R B HRR 2D -

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted Company
with limited liabilities in the Cayman Islands. The address
of the registered office of the Company is Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The head office and principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong is located at 19/F,

New Wing, 101 King’s Road, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings.
The Group is principally engaged in pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical retain
chain business as in the PRC. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 11 October 2013. The Company’s
immediate holding company is Greatly Wealth Global Group
Limited (“Global Wealth”), a company incorporated in British
Virgin Islands. Greatly Wealth is a directly wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hua Xia, a company incorporated in Cayman
Islands on 28 May 2001 as an exempted company with
limited liability, of which is listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange and it is the ultimate
holding company of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as functional
currency of the Company, and the functional currency of the
most of the subsidiaries in Renminbi (“RMB"). The Board of
Directors considered that it is more appropriate to present
the consolidated financial statements in HK$ as the shares
of the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of HK$ (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

—REH
AAARFEEREEAMA LS ER R
BRAAB AR AEMPSEE I
A Cricket Square Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681,Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands e R A B 2 BPWEERE
BEREEMBVNEBREEI01RH
B8

RRFERXBRREER -AKEE
EEPEREERMBNSERERT
EEHXE -HIZMBA R ZXBEHT
RERE MR RHE24 -

ARBZBHBE=-F—=F+A+t—HiE
EEBBARZMARATR (TBXXHM])
ERET-ARAB2EEEZERATHBAE
RREBARQA ([KE]) - Z2AH
REBEZEHSEMEILZ AT KBS
EECHEZEMBLAR EFEAR-F
E-FRA-tN\BRFEEREEMRTL
ZEREERAT  RBERZFrRIZER ([ A
EW]) EH BARRAZBEKERAF

REMBHRERABT([BLT])25 &
RRFZNEERHEE - KEBDHEA R
ZHEEB/ARE (ARE]) -ES
ERR HRADTARGRERA LT
BB T2V GEEMBHRRERSE KR
SHEERN GEMBHREATET (T
BIT) 25
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B Y

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—"F=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,

the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"):

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-
2012 Cycle

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-
2013 Cycle

The application of the above new and revised HKFRSs had
no material effect on how the financial performance and
position for the current or prior accounting periods have
been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period

adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-
2014 Cycle?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 (2011)
(Amendments)

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
(Amendments) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®
HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisition of Interests in

Joint Operation?

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

HKFRS 16 Leases*

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative?

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
(Amendments) Depreciation and Amortisation?

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
(Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate Financial

Statements?

! Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning
on or after 1 January 2016, with early application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with early application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with early application permitted.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019, with early application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after the date to
be determined.

FERAHIIREETETEEBMEE
HFHAN([HFEMBEHEEEN])
— &

EERBREEN REZHABRENFASELE
FIHEREBEHE ZHNEELEREE
BISE28%: (155 )

BENBREREL WBARLEERZEHER
E15; (BEIR)

EREUBREEN EERERF

F1458

EERBREEN  REEFEAZKE
155

EEMBRERE  HE

2165

EEETENEIE HEXHE

(B3T%)

BRSHEAZI65R RENERRHE BRI
BAETER %385

SCHEY

BESTEAZ IR BE £ENEN
BAGTREAEMHR

SCHES

BREHEANRY BUMBHRRzERE
SCHES

! REEBE-A"E-A-BRz&MHBRZE
BEEEBYBRELENTBHERE
Mo RFHREEM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B Y

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=—Z—~"F=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which

are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in
HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal
group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners
(or vice versa), or when held-for-distribution accounting is

discontinued. The amendments apply prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to
clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement
in a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures
required in relation to transferred assets and clarify that
the offsetting disclosures (introduced in the amendments
to HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities issued in December 2011 and effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013) are not
explicitly required for all interim periods. However, the
disclosures may need to be included in condensed interim
financial statements to comply with HKAS 34 Interim

Financial Reporting.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality
corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate for post-
employment benefits should be issued in the same currency
as the benefits to be paid. These amendments would
result in the depth of the market for high quality corporate
bonds being assessed at currency level. The amendments
apply from the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented in the financial statements in which the
amendments are first applied. Any initial adjustment arising
should be recognised in retained earnings at the beginning

of that period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle - continued

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements
relating to information required by HKAS 34 that is
presented elsewhere within the interim financial report but
outside the interim financial statements. The amendments
require that such information be incorporated by way of a
cross reference from the interim financial statements to the
other part of the interim financial report that is available to
users on the same terms and at the same time as the interim

financial statements.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material impact on the Group's

consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended
in October 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to include
(a) impairment requirements for financial assets and (b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income” (FVTOCI) measurement category for

certain simple debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=—Z—~"F=A=1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

o With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities” credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR e B R R M A

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERABIIREETEEMER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING FHAN([FEMBEHEEEN])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued -8
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments - continued EEMBEREENESRLMTA

— i

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to

have occurred before credit losses are recognised; and

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of
an “economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk

management activities have also been introduced.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in
the future may have an impact on the amounts reported
in respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities. Regarding the Group's financial assets, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect

until a detailed review has been completed.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
28 (2011) Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

The amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
clarify that the exemption from preparing consolidated
financial statements is available to a parent entity that is a
subsidiary of an investment entity, even if the investment
entity measures all its subsidiaries at fair value in accordance
with HKFRS 10. The amendments also clarify that the
requirement for an investment entity to consolidate
a subsidiary providing services related to the former’s
investment activities applies only to subsidiaries that are not

investment entities themselves.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material impact on the Group's

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 deal with
situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses
resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does
not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method,
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate
or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from
the remeasurement of investments retained in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value
are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new

associate or joint venture.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will have a material

impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B Y

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=—Z—~"F=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
Acquisition of Interests in Joint Operation

The amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on how
to account for the acquisition of a joint operation that
constitutes a business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations. Specifically, the amendments state that the
relevant principles on accounting for business combinations
in HKFRS 3 and other standards (e.g. HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets regarding impairment testing of a cash
generating unit to which goodwill on acquisition of a joint
operation has been allocated) should be applied. The same
requirements should be applied to the formation of a joint
operation if and only if an existing business is contributed to
the joint operation by one of the parties that participate in

the joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant
information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards for

business combinations.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 apply prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The directors
do not anticipate that the application of these amendments
to HKFRS 11 will have a material impact on the Group's

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts, describes regulatory
deferral account balances as amounts of expense or income
that would not be recognised as assets or liabilities in
accordance with other standards, but that qualify to be
deferred in accordance with IFRS/HKFRS 14 because the
amount is included, or is expected to be included, by the
rate regulator in establishing the price(s) that an entity can

charge to customers for rate regulated goods or services.

The amendments to HKFRS 14 apply prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The directors
do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 14 will have
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes

effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=—Z—~"F=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
- continued

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

- Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the

contract

- Step 3: Determine the transaction price

- Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

- Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may have a material impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group's consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the

Group performs a detailed review.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC) — Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contain a Lease”,
HK(SIC) — Int 15 “Operating Lease — Incentives” and
HK(SIC) — Int 27 “Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease”. HKFRS 16 eliminates
the classification by a lessee of leases as either operating
or finance. Instead all leases are treated in a similar way to
finance leases in accordance with HKAS 17 “Leases”. Under
HKFRS 16, leases are recorded on the statement of financial
position by recognizing a liability for the present value of
its obligation to make future lease payments with an asset
(comprised of the amount of lease liability plus certain
other amounts) either being disclosed separately in the
statement of financial position (within right-of-use assets)
or together with property, plant and equipment. The most
significant effect of the new requirements will be an increase
in recognised lease assets and financial liabilities. There are
some exemptions. HKFRS 16 contains options which do not
require a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for (a) short
term leases (i.e. lease of 12 months or less, including the
effect of any extension options) and (b) leases of low value
assets (for example, a lease of a personal computer). HKFRS
16 substantially carries forward the lessor’s accounting

requirements in HKAS 17.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B Y

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=—Z—~"F=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
HKFRS 16 Leases — continued

Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently. In classifying a sublease, an
intermediate lessor shall classify the sublease as a finance

lease or an operating lease as follows:

(a) if the head lease is a short-term lease that the entity, as
a lessee, the sublease shall be reclassified as an operating
lease; (b) otherwise, the sublease shall be classified by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, rather than by reference to the underlying asset.
HKFRS 16 clarifies that a lessee separates lease components
and service components of a contract, and applies the lease

accounting requirements only to the lease components.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
potential impact of application of HKFRS 16, the directors
consider that it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of the adoption of HKFRS 16 until the

Group performs a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 give some guidance on how to

apply the concept of materiality in practice.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The directors do
not anticipate that the application of these amendments
to HKAS 1 will have a material impact on the Group's

consolidated financial statements.

8 6 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

BRI RIEETEEMER
HEAU([FRMBEWEER])
— ¥

FEREMBREEANTIGRASLT -
Hit HEABEEEAE S BAEER
ENRENE WEZWERES BA
BReBA NS EAS - RN AR
TORERIES BRBMEHEREE
HE

(EEHENEREEMZER B AM
A R HEREH S BREEHEE: b)E
- pESRATHEELENEREER
EMo8 MASREBEESIE-BE
R ELERE1RABRHBEABEAR
B2 EHNEERO KRB - LER
HEBNEAEESTER-

AEERERERAT B BRESERSE
16N EELBETHML ESAR &
AEBEETHEEMARAERATEY
BHRELENBIREZENSEMTLR
AT

FRETENE R (BTF)HFE
/)3

BB ERE IR BT AR M MERE
EREEMBISRME LI5S -

ERET RS IR ZBIERAR-Z -
F-R—BRzERRZFERBEN -
EEHY ERAEBSFTENE IR ZZ
ERTATEHAKEZHREVBHE/E
BRERTE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from using a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property,
plant and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38
introduce a rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an
appropriate basis for amortisation of an intangible asset.
This presumption can only be rebutted in the following two

limited circumstances:

(@) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of

revenue; or

(b)  when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the

intangible asset are highly correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will have a material

impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=—Z—~"F=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to account for investments

in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate

financial statements:
- At cost;

- In accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(or HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for entities that have not yet adopted
HKFRS 9); or

- Using the equity method as described in HKAS 28

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The accounting option must be applied by category of

investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases to
be an investment entity, or becomes an investment entity, it
shall account for the change from the date when the change

in status occurred.

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there are
consequential amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid a potential
conflict with HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and to HKFRS 1 First time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 27 will have a material impact on the

Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("CQO") (Cap. 622) regarding preparation of accounts and
directors’ reports and audits became effective for the
Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.
Further, the disclosure requirements set out in the Listing
Rules regarding annual accounts have been amended with
reference to the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs.
Accordingly, the presentation and disclosure of information
in the consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 March 2016 have been changed to comply with
these new requirements. Comparative information in respect
of the financial year ended 31 March 2015 are presented
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based
on the new requirements. Information previously required
to be disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules
but not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not

disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS 3R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE—Z—"F=HA=1+—HILFE

90

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

A summary of significant accounting policies followed by the
Group in the preparation of the financial statements is set

out below:

Basis of preparation

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is historical cost except
for certain financial instruments and investment properties
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration of given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE=Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of preparation — continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE—Z—"F=HA=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting

rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when

the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability

to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.

The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances

Sl

in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an

investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote

holders;

potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote

holders or other parties;

rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at

previous shareholders’ meetings.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE=Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiaries and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the

Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B Y

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a

joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard.

3.

EXEMHBRBE-&

REat
EBWBRAWBESIR - EBE oz
EERERQAVENE MAFEDER
WEBAREEMERZ2EE  AEEB R
WBELARRRREEZEBERAEER
RBBEWB LR ERERTREZ
DNVPEZBETE - WEHEREA KRR
EERERARER -

FRULEE B 58 - BB 2 TR B B R P
EzE8ENELFEER AT HEREK
G

e EEMEEENEBENRRESEF
ZHEHCEERREDBIREE
B ERE 2R EHREBER
ERF IR ESFEAEARTE

s HEEWELTAURBGNANRZZHR
BARASER] ARGz =5
BMARKBRTURD ARz ZH
FHRzEESEETA RUEE
RRBEBMBRELEAE2RURG
X ZHETE R

o RREBUMBIREEASBSHAFELY
EZHRBEERCRIUEEET
TERABFHEZEE (HHEA
B ERZERGTE -

EESERRERLAR
2015/2016 3R]

95



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS 3R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE—Z—"F=HA=1+—HILFE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations — continued

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any

non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
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and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE=Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations — continued

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment

would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations — continued

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that

existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss

being recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Goodwiill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business

less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash generating units (the “CGUs")
(or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss

on disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the property, plant and equipment,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that

asset.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, using the straight line
method, over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates are as follows:
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The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit and loss and other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE=Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash generating units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful fives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they

may be impaired.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE—Z
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—~FZRA=T—RILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill - continued

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash

flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL"). The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the

market place.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE—Z—"F=HA=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial

asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE=Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Financial assets at FVTPL — continued

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading

may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial

asset and is included in the “other revenue”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for the short-term receivables where the

recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation ; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables and others receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in die number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 90 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial

asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and

an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Convertible notes

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible
notes) issued by the Company are classified separately
as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’'s own equity instruments is an

equity instrument.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Convertible notes — continued

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded
as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective
interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the

instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the
fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium/other equity. When the conversion option remains
unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible note, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to retained
profits/other equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or

loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability component and are amortised over the lives of

the convertible notes using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE=Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities
at FVTPL or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at FV'TPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated

as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of

repurchasing it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued
Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Financial liabilities at FVTPL — continued
A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial

recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits the

entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item. Fair value

is determined in the manner described in note 5.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE=Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
bank borrowings and convertible note) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis

other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

3.
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The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises

a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Derecognition — continued

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the

relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B Y

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

1o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, other costs that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and pledged bank deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
positions, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand

and at banks, which are not restricted to use.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and revenue and

costs,

if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyers, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective

control over the goods sold;

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using effective interest method. When a
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flows discounted at original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans is recognised using the

original effective interest rate.

Rental income
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage
and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,

these amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and to the state-managed retirement benefits
schemes for the employees of the Group’s overseas entities
are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is

without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit
plans under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
separate entities such as social security plans in the PRC,
and the Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further contributions if any of the funds do not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods. The
Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are

recognised in the financial year to which they relate.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

3.

EXEMHBRBE-&

EREH

¥ FRES AHFFR ERKER
AEBIERRNZZRATDRAEEE
SRHBBERE 2PERRE - fHEE N
REEE UBREALE MBEBERE
ARHBEIR

REZBEFHMELABESA IR ZHAE
HEBIARESHEHZHR URIAE
EE/EEESYEXEERKERG
BFE 2R DREAKREFSERER
Hit2EWEREAAMAZ

RIEBEFRSEREERABRTERE—
AR 2 R ER B EBRBEE
AGH AR LR AR AR IR T LARER

ERERGTERRMKENTE Bt &
EEXNEEHRTELER  WPE2
HERETE AfEAESYESER
REEUXNEBEENRBEHE2E
ERBZMBRERERN  AEEHEEW
FRIEEESEXNE-—SHK - FEE
HEBRRRGEZHRDIREEBRAZ
BMBFEERNER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years,
and it further excludes consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income items that are never

taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary difference can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill (or negative
goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Income tax - continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investment in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the

deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Income tax - continued

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of

its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,

rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they related to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business

combination.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are

reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted

3.

EXEMHBRBE-&

1% i

HAKEEBESHERRREEME CER
HEE) METEHEEETEREEHE
FoRE WHABREE ST Eb G
AlEH LR RS  BAERSREHARE
TEE YSFHAZURRE AT 2 &E
EEte-fEB o REEEREATE A

to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the BRESHEAETEERAMENZZ
time value of money is material, the amount of a provision BE-

is the present value of the expenditures expected to be

required to settle the obligations.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets HRAFRRBREE

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of

obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as a

provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued
Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

- continued

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain

events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is

virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to

interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in

order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary

items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).
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RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the

Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange

differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive

income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing costs
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the period in which they

are incurred.

Related party transactions
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group, if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Related party transactions - continued

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or

an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the Group's parent.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Related party transactions - continued

3.
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when there is a transfer of resources and obligations

between related parties.

HRERE

E-EXSHABALTZETFEERRE
FEBR HERBBALRS-

Leases e
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms THEERFRSEEREERBAIL D R R
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards EREETAEEA AEERSEARE

of ownership to the leasee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

Leasing

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Leasing - continued

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly to the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a

straight-line basis.

Prepaid lease payments for land use rights

Prepaid lease payments for land use rights is stated as
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of interest in
leasehold land are amortised on a straight line basis over the

relevant interest in leasehold land.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purpose). Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are

included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the net
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the

property is derecognised.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial information, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's

various lines of business and geographical locations.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Segment reporting — continued

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, management is required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors have made in the
process of applying the Group accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised

in the consolidated financial statements.

(@) Income taxes and deferred taxation
The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
tax authorities. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

(b) Useful lives and impairment of property,

(c)

plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the
useful lives of property, plant and equipment in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expenses to
be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at the time
the asset is acquired based on historical experience,
the expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as
well as technical obsolescence arising from changes in
the market demands or service output of the assets.
The Group also performs annual reviews on whether
the assumptions made on useful lives continue to be
valid. The Group tests annually whether the assets have
suffered any impairment. The recoverable amount of
an asset or a cash generating unit is determined based
on value in use calculations which require the use of

assumptions and estimates.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has
been impairment of goodwill in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions made
by management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions

underlying the value-in-use calculations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

(d)

(e)

134

Impairment of trade receivables

The aged debt profile of trade debtors is reviewed on a
regular basis to ensure that the trade debtor balances
are collectible and follow up actions are promptly
carried out if the agreed credit periods have been
exceeded. However, from time to time, the Group may
experience delays in collection. Where recoverability of
trade debtor balances are called into doubts, specific
provisions for bad and doubtful debts are made
based on credit status of the customers, the aged
analysis of the trade receivable balances and write-off
history. Certain receivables may be initially identified
as collectible, yet subsequently become uncollectible
and result in a subsequent write-off of the related
receivable to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Changes in the
collectability of trade receivables for which provisions

are not made could affect the results of operations.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is
individually determined at the end of each reporting
period based on its market value and by adopting
direct comparison method. Direct comparison method
assumes each of these properties is capable of being
sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant
possession and by making reference to comparable
sales evidence as available in the relevant market
condition, the fair value of the investment properties

will change in the future.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. #MTIA
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) EBEIBSHEMIA
2016 2015
—E—-RE¥ —E-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET
Financial assets HMERE
Loans and receivables B EWRE
— trade and other receivables — B RHEMEBUWRIE 233,593 332,702
— amount due from the immediate —FEWEEZER A TRIE
holding company - 15
— amounts due from fellow — B [E) A BT B
subsidiaries REFIA 8,181 8,621
— cash and cash equivalents -BHEeRkREEEER 203,500 43,029
— pledged bank deposits —BEFRTER 6,096 12,970
451,370 397,337
Financial liabilities HBAR
At amortised cost 1R 18 85 A AR
— trade and other payables — B REMEMRIE 215,166 224,796
— amount due to the ultimate — A RAZERATRIE
holding company 485 4,515
— amounts due to fellow - BNEZRKE QB RIE
subsidiaries 10,802 -
— bank borrowings —RITER 32,396 121,454
— convertible note —ARREE 77,267 =
336,116 350,765
ERSEERERAR

2015/2016 3R]
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

136

policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposits, amount due from the
immediate holding company, amounts due from a
fellow subsidiaries, trade and other payables, bank
borrowings, amount due to the ultimate holding
company, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and
convertible note. The details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate
risk and currency risk. The directors review and agree
policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets.
No other financial assets carry a significant exposure to

credit risk.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. &#MTH-&
(b) HERREEEAERBE &

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk - continued

The Group's concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in the PRC. The Group
also has concentration of credit risk by customers as
approximately 20.7% of total trade receivables were
due from the Group's five largest customers as at 31
March 2016 (2015: 31.5%).

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
on a timely basis and adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts overdue. In this
regards, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents are mainly deposited in the state controlled
PRC banks which the directors assessed the credit risk

to be insignificant.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available
to meet liabilities as they fall due, and it results
from amount and maturity mismatches of assets and
liabilities. The Group will consistently maintain a
prudent financial policy and ensure that it maintains

sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. EMIR-I&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MBEREEEERRBE &
policies — continued
Liquidity risk — continued mE)E & R - R
The following tables detail Group's contractual TRFIXAEEGHEEBHGBKRELN
maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have been FH MR BEAEEZRREEEE
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of HEzHBEEERBARERER
financial liabilities which are the earliest dates of the Ho TREFEINERTERERE -
Group can be required to pay. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows.
Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective or within Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
mEEY BEXE HRRE
ERf®E R—%R Ba-F RERT WREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET FTERT FTERT
As at 31 March 2016 RZZ-5x%=R E'I'—H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMI - 215,166 - 215,166 215,166
Amount due to the ultimate holding i &k ez HE’AT
company - 485 - 485 485
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERRRMBARHKE - 10,802 - 10,802 10,802
Bank borrowings RITER 5.99 33,911 - 33,911 32,396
Convertible note THREE 13.11 - 84,292 84,292 71,267
260,364 84,292 344,656 336,116
As at 31 March 2015 “E-1%=R E‘I'—El
Trade and other payables 5 REMEMI - 224,79 - 224,79 224,79
Amount due to the ultimate holding A ik s2 ﬂﬁ’&?
company - 4,515 - 4,515 4,515
Bank borrowings RITEN 8.50 126,975 = 126,975 121,454
356,286 - 356,286 350,765

138

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework
for the management of the Group’s short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the

maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has available
unutilised short and medium term bank loan
facilities of approximately HK$20,878,000 (2015:
HK$64,983,000).

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (Note
33). The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of benchmark interest
rates published by the People’s Bank of China for the

Group's RMB denominated borrowings.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

140

policies — continued

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the
floating rate bank borrowings. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points increase or decrease
throughout the reporting period is used internally for

assessment of possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's profit for the year would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$22,000 (2015: HK$408,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest

rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s

functional currency.

The main operations of the Group were in the PRC
and most of the transactions were denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB"). Foreign exchange risk arises from
the foreign currency denominated of commercial
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group has no
significant direct exposure to foreign currencies as most
of the commercial transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency as the functional currency

of each entity of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. &#MTH-&
(b) HERREEEAERBE &

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Currency risk — continued

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

Fair value measurement
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

(i)  The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid and ask prices

respectively.

(i) The fair values of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models (e.g.
discounted cash flows analysis using observable

and/or unobservable inputs).

The carrying amount of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost, approximate their
respective fair values due to the relatively short-term

nature of these financial statements.
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5.

14

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
The Group's financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to

which the fair value is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly

(i.e. derived from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (unobservable inputs).

During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into or
out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial

liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(c) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on recurring basis
Except as detailed in the following table, the directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated

financial statements approximate to their fair values.

eMI AR

() AFBISW|EELIOFEHEZ
FREMBBERMBARZL
FH

EERAR BRTRAFLEEIN  FTA
REVBRRAVBEERTBE
Bz REEEE A FEMEE-

As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2015
R-ZE-REZA=+—-H R-E-RF=f=+—H
Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
REE LFE REE AEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TERT TER
Financial liabilities MEBAR
Convertible note AR EE 77,267 75,055 = =
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BXEBEERE

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital

during the reporting period.

The Group monitors capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group
overall strategy remains unchanged during the reporting

period.

FEEEREANEEZEERERRELR
BUSEEECENED  URESRRE
MEARLLR UXEAEBBRESKRR
ESBABE AEESHELHERREE
CEBEARRBIHEELHAR - BHER
FABERRE AEEREFAEINT
BRROKRERE REEATRRAET
FRp -RBEHE FEEEEAXNE
B BRYBREIEITMEE-

FEEERES URFRASEASER
EARSEEELSE EREBBLER
BERANFE BEFENATRERER-
RESHE AEENEBRBLES
B o

T i



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued 6.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts (bank
borrowings and convertible note), cash and cash equivalents

and equity attributable to owners of the Company,

BxEREE-&

FEENEARBEEGK (RITEBERR
MR REE) RERRESLEEBEUR
ARAEEARGERS (BEESBRITRA

comprising issued share capital and reserves. K f#fw) o
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FF
HK$000 HK$’000
FET THET
Debts (Note (a)) &% (K@) 109,663 121,454
Cash and cash equivalents BHeERBELSHEER (203,500) (43,029)
Net (cash)/debt (Re)  EBFHE (93,837) 78,425
Equity (Note (b)) = (MizEb)) 222,744 273,781
Gearing ratio EESEBLE N/A 0.29

Notes: B 5T

(@)  Debts represented by bank borrowings and convertible note as
set out in Note 33 and Note 34 respectively.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners
of the Company.

’I 44 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT

Information reported internally to the chief operating

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and

assessment of segment performance focuses on types of

goods or services delivered or provided. The Group organised

into two operating divisions: (a) pharmaceutical wholesale

and distribution business and (b) pharmaceutical retail chain

business in the PRC. These divisions are the basis on which

the Group reports its segment information.

Segment revenue and results
For the year ended 31 March 2016

BEERW
MEZLBERREALZR/AEERD
BERFEIERAZER DEERMX
NHEHRz2ERPBREEE - A EEHAS
RAWMELE D AR E 2 ()% m L 3%
Ro#HEBRbOERTEEHER - ZF
DEDNAKEEHRASTEER 2ER -

SR REA
BE_FT—X"FZA=t+—HL*FE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

Pharmaceutical

distribution retail chain
business business Eliminations Consolidated
EaRRR ERTE
DHEE EHEE He &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THET TET
Revenue By
External sales HIMEE 1,083,341 238,422 - 1,321,763
Inter-segment sales DEEHEE 37,010 28,772 (65,782) -
Total revenue By 1,120,351 267,194 (65,782) 1,321,763
Inter-segment sales are charged SEBEENRATF
at arm's length EEWE
Results £
Segment results PEEE 12,634 (3,514) - 9,120
Unallocated other revenue RAE 2 iz 186
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHBARZER (772)
Unallocated corporate expenses AAMZLELH (4,473)
Profit from operations R EA 4,061
Finance costs BHEH (16,365)
Loss before taxation R AR (12,304)
Taxation A (1,158)
Loss for the year KEEHE (13,462)
BEESEERARLR
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OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Segment revenue and results — continued

For the year ended 31 March 2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
7% ¥R 3% M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

EESH-®
BB RRE -

EZE-HF=A=1+—HLEE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and Pharmaceutical
distribution retail chain
business business Eliminations Consolidated
ERHER BEREE
DEHER BHEER e oe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx TET TET TER
Revenue BRE
External sales HINEE 1,346,925 220,762 1,567,687
Inter-segment sales SEEHEE 51,384 38,613 (89,997 =
Total revenue BExw 1,398,309 259,375 (89,997) 1,567,687
Inter-segment sales are charged at PEEHEDRAT
arm's length HEWE
Results E 1 |
Segment results DEER (757,862) 5,799 (752,063)
Unallocated other revenue Aoz Hlk R 1
Unallocated corporate expenses AAMZLELH (4,449)
Loss from operations ReEEKER (756,511)
Finance costs BKER (8,819)
Loss before taxation BRI B 1R (765,330)
Taxation BE (7,950)
Loss for the year XEEFB (773,280

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016



7. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Segment assets and liabilities

As at 31 March 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

7. BESBH-®
PHRERAR

R-8—X"EFE=A=+—8H

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

Pharmaceutical

distribution retail chain
business business Consolidated
ERHER ERTE
PHEE EHEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THET THET
Consolidated statement of financial position & MBEHKAE
Assets BgE
Segment assets NEEE 473,700 148,952 622,652
Unallocated corporate assets AP LEEE 24,146
Consolidated total assets RAREEME 646,798
Liabilities fff
Segment liabilities 2EEE 204,516 70,843 275,359
Convertible note ARREE 77,267
Deferred tax liabilities ELEREEE 563
Unallocated corporate liabilities Aoz LEEE 3,085
Consolidated total liabilities RAEEHE 356,274
EREEREEBRAR

2015/2016 3R]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z—Z—~"F=HA=1+—HILFE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued 7. BERW-®
Segment assets and liabilities - continued SHAERAR-E
As at 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RE=RA=+—H
Pharmaceutical
wholesale and Pharmaceutical
distribution retail chain
business business Consolidated
EoHtER BRTE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER T

Consolidated statement of financial position $&MBEKAE

Assets BE
Segment assets PEEE 502,453 140,347 642,800
Unallocated corporate assets APE2EERE 12,540
Consolidated total assets RREEMHE 655,340
Liabilities ffa
Segment liabilities PEEE 313,177 53,321 366,498
Unallocated corporate liabilities RoBEoLEER 5,798
Consolidated total liabilities REEEHE 372,296
'I 4 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Other segment information
For the year ended 31 March 2016

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

7. EESE-®
Hfth 5 WEH
BE-—S—AFEZA=t+—-HLEE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale Pharmaceutical
and distribution retail chain
business business Unallocated Consolidated
EahRR ERTE
PHEE EHEE *AE &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET TET TET
Other information Ht&H
Capital expenditure* ERELH 245 11,646 - 11,891
Depreciation e 1,847 4,601 1 6,449
Amortisation of prepaid lease BABERERY
payments - 365 - 365
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment REZEHE 14 323 - 337
Impairment loss recognised in respect  #E 5 K B KR E
of trade and other receivables BRZREESE 519 657 - 1,176
Reversal of impairment loss HEHREMERTIERED
recognised in respect of REBERE
trade and other receivables (580) (103) - (683)
Loss on disposal of subsidiary HEMB AR ZEE 772 - - 772
Change in fair value of RENECATEED
investment property - 490 - 490
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE_Z-—HAF=A=+—HLEE
Pharmaceutical
wholesale Pharmaceutical
and distribution retail chain
business business Unallocated Consolidated
ERHBER EmTE
DIEH BHER AAE RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TEL TEx
Other information HttEH
Capital expenditure* EREL 4,075 11,061 6 15,142
Depreciation e 2,030 3,042 13 5,085
Amortisation of prepaid lease BABERERY
payments - 188 - 188
Impairment loss on goodwill BEERAESE 785,169 = = 785,169
Reversal of impairment loss HE 5 RHMEKGIERER
recognised in respect of HEBBREE
trade and other receivables (130) - - (130)
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment FEZER 40 40 = 80
Impairment loss recognised in respect  FE 5 & 2 KB
of trade and other receivables R ZREER 2,123 1,838 = 3,961
Change in fair value of RENENTEES
Investment property - 252 - 252
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant * EXAHXBREHYE BERRBZH

and equipment and prepaid lease payments.

ERENHEHERE

EESERRERLAR
2015/2016 &R
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE
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OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Other segment information — continued

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
3. Segment results represent the profit or loss generated
by each segment without allocation of finance costs, other
corporate revenue, income, expense and loss on disposal of
a subsidiary and taxation. Unallocated corporate expenses
mainly include directors’ remuneration and other central
administration costs. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purpose of resource

allocation and assessment of segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated corporate assets. Unallocated
corporate assets mainly include cash and cash
equivalents and office equipment of the central
administration companies. Goodwill is allocated to

reportable segments as described in Note 21.

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than convertible note, deferred tax liabilities and
unallocated corporate liabilities. Unallocated corporate
liabilities mainly include the amount due to the
ultimate holding company, accruals and other payables

of the central administration companies.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Geographical information

The Group operates in two principal areas — pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business and pharmaceutical
retail chain business operates in the PRC and administrative

activity operates in Hong Kong.

The Group’'s revenue is solely generated from external

customers in the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the carryings amount of non-
current assets analysed by the geographical area in which

the assets are located:

BEESW-#

B H
AEERMEFEANEE - EFEE
EEGUBROHEBUARERTEE
HEBREEBEEERLER-

AEEZWEZIRERPRAINMPES

UTAREEMELEI N ZERDE
EZIREE D :

Carrying amounts of

non-current assets

RBEEZ
IREE

2016 2015
—E—REFE —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Hong Kong &8 24 39
PRC ] 37,248 37,131
37,272 37,170

R osoe s D]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z—Z—~"F=HA=1+—HILFE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued 7.

Information about major customers
For the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, no single

customers contributed 10% or more to the Group's revenue.

Revenue from major products
The Group’s revenue from its major products were stated in

Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

8. REVENUE 8.

The Group's revenue represents the net invoiced value of
goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts.

The revenue is as follows:

EESH-®
FRERERZEH

BE T ARERFE—HF=A=1+—
HIEFE HE8E-—SFHAEE 2l

BHRI10%E L £ o

FEERZEES

AEBFEERMZBEHANGREHBR

FMIFES o

W =

AEENRBERENREERRXZ T
BRERNCERRBRFE - WAENT

2016 2015
—E—RF —E-RF
HK$000 HK$'000
T#T FET
Retail of pharmaceutical and ZnRNHBEERZSE

related products 238,422 220,762

Wholesale and distribution of ZRRHEBEERIERDH
pharmaceutical and related products 1,083,341 1,346,925
1,321,763 1,567,687

’I 52 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e B SR

M

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

OTHER REVENUE 9. Hfilx
2016 2015
—E—REF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ExT FH& T
Interest income FE UK A 220 1,131
Rental income HEWA 2,289 2,511
Exhibition income BREUWA - 1
Sundry income MBI A 2,491 2,736
5,000 6,379
OTHER GAIN/(LOSS), NET 10. Hthle & (B51R) - B8
2016 2015
—E—REF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ExT F#& T
Reversal of impairment loss of trade B ZREWFIEZREEERE
receivables 683 130
Change in fair value of investment property RE¥ ¥z A FEEZH (490) (252)
Exchange gain [E 5 UK 2,674 =
Loss on disposal of property, HEVE RERZEZEE
plant and equipment (337) (80)
2,530 (202)
EREEREEBRAR

2015/2016 3R]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE R R AR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

11.

154

PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS

The Group's profit/(loss) for the year from operations is

arrived at after charging:

RHRTHIEE REN:

1. BEXRBEH (BR)
ARBSEEBEZFREH, (BR) T

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FiET
Staff costs: BEITER:
Employee benefits expense (including EERABEZ (BEESHS
directors’ emoluments (Note 13)): (HFEE13)) -
Salaries and allowances e KERM 65,200 63,470
Retirement scheme contributions BRINEGHEIE 8,725 7,808
73,925 71,278
Other items: HMEA :
Depreciation of owned property, FEEY* BERRZETE
plant and equipment (Note 18) (KfEE18) 6,449 5,085
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FEAEERE RS (HEE19)
(Note 19) 365 188
Auditors’ remuneration e R &
— audit services —BZR 987 850
- non-audit services —EEZRB - =
Cost of inventories sold EEFEERAE 1,175,635 1,407,842
Impairment loss on goodwill (Note 21) EEREREE (ME21) - 785,169
Impairment loss recognised in respect of REZREMEVRERRZ
trade and other receivables B EE 1,176 3,961
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EMBARZEE (772) =
Operating lease rentals in respect of MIWREFILKEHERS
land and building 29,609 25,437

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

12. FINANCE COSTS 12. B&EEH
2016 2015
—E—XE | —E-"fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FlT T

Interest on: LLTIER Z2F A :

— Bank borrowings —RITEE 8,088 8,819
— Convertible note — R EE 8,277 =
16,365 8,819

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEHM

Pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, the aggregate amounts of emoluments paid by

the companies now comprising the Group to the directors of

the Company during the reporting period are as follows:

BB LHRREB DR RARAS
SEZZERAARKEHEXIMATEALD

BAESZHMARMT

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHExT FHE T

Fees we 315 315
Other emoluments: Hif £ :

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RBEREYR S 417 319

Retirement scheme contributions ERETEIHX 17 14

Total e 749 648

L TY Tl N

2015/2016 3R]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS - continued 13. EEHM — &

156

Details for the emoluments of each director of the Company

ARABABEERBEMB zHMFB W

during the reporting period are as follows: T s
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and scheme
Fees benefits in kind contributions Total
He BUER
e Emig BRI R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FTHET FTET FiET
For the year ended BHE_Z-RE
31 March 2016 ZA=t+—-HLEEE
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Yung Ka Chun (Note (c)) SEBLE (HF(Q) - 7 - 7
Mr. Chen Jinshan (Note (d)) R&L%E (KEEd) - 60 - 60
Ms. Shum Ngai Pan (Note (e)) MBR LT (M) - 114 6 120
Ms. Yung Ka Lai (Note (h)) BEBE LT (M) - 236 11 247
Independent non-executive directors:  BUFHTEE:
Mr. Liang Yichi (Note (f) RStk E (HEE()) 75 - - 75
Dr. Liu Yongping (Note (g)) AETEL (KE0) 120 - - 120
Mr. Wong Hon Kit EEALE 120 - - 120
315 417 17 749
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and scheme
Fees benefits in kind contributions Total
He 2ER
ik ENFE BT EIGR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TiEx TEr TET FiEx
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BEZ-Z-1F
ZA=Zt-HLEE
Executive directors: ﬂ TEZ:
Mr. Weng Jiaxing (Note (a)) HMELE (FiEE@) - 234 11 245
Mr. Chen Yong (Note (b)) lﬁﬁii Ktz (b)) - - - -
M. Yung Ka Chun (Note (c)) BEERE (@) - 57 3 60
Mr. Chen Jinshan (Note (d)) BR& L LA (KEEd)) = 28 = 28
Ms. Shum Ngai Pan (Note (e)) B L L (M) = = = =
Independent non-executive directors:  BUFHTEE:
Mr. Liang Yichi (Note (f) 2tk E (FEE() 75 - - 75
Dr. Liu Yongping (Note (g)) 2ETEL (K=E() 120 - - 120
Mr. Wong Hon Kit EHEGLLE 120 - - 120
315 319 14 648

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS - continued

Notes:

(a)

Mr. Weng lJiaxing is the chief executive officer and was
appointed as executive director from 9 July 2012 and resigned
on 21 November 2014.

Mr. Chen Yong resigned from the executive director on 10
October 2014.

Mr. Yung Ka Chun was appointed as executive director on 10
October 2014 and resigned on 20 April 2015.
Mr. Chen Jinshan was appointed as executive director on 10

October 2014.

Ms. Shum Ngai Pan was appointed as executive director on 20
April 2015.

Mr. Liang Yichi was appointed as independent non-executive
director on 4 September 2012.

Dr. Liu Yongping was appointed as independent non-executive
director on 27 February 2014.

Ms. Yung Ka Lai was appointed as executive director on 5
August 2015.

During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, none of

the directors and chief executive of the Company waived or

agreed to waive any emoluments.

During the year, no emoluments have been paid to

the directors and chief executive of the Company as

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation.

13. EEHM — 18

BfEE -

(a)

SMEEERTHRAR IR=-F—=
FLANRBEZERHMITESAR=
Z-OE+-A=+—HEE-

REELER=-Z—-—NF+ A+ BEEH
TES-

SEBAREN-E-NE+A+AR
EERHITES YR -B—HEMA
—RBE

REUEER-Z-—NF+ATHEE
ERHTES-

MBELLTR-—Z-—RAFHA=-tHE
ZERPTES-

R-MELER-ZB-——FAANREE
ERBIUFYITES-

AEFHIR=_FT—NEF_A=+tH
EZEABIUFHTES-

SEBLIR-Z-—HAF/N\AEREZE
ERHTES-

e NER-—S—HE=A=+—
BLEFE SIEAARESREETHA
ENESREREZEMHE -

FR ARALEAESEREBRITHAE
XATHFE - MER R B N RE AN
BERNER ERHE-

EESERRERLAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

14. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS 14. EEM&
Senior management emoluments and five highest EREEARHMERIEREHFER
paid employees
The five highest paid individuals during the year included FAREESFEEERE—B (ZZE—1
1 director (2015: 1). The details of the emoluments of the FI—R)EZ-BRTHEB(ZE—HF:
remaining 4 (2015: 4) highest paid individuals are as follows: NE2)BReaHFEECHESFBUNT
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FET
Salaries and other emoluments FeRHEMBME 1,540 1,309
Retirement scheme contributions R KE FI T IR 56 51
1,596 1,360
The number of these non-directors, highest paid employees ZEHES BeoFEENFHANFUT
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as Ei[E :
follows:
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ZE—-8F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0£ 1,000,000 Jt 4 4

’I 58 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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14. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS - continued

15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R M A

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

Senior management emoluments and five highest

paid employees - continued

The emoluments of the senior management (excluding

14.

EREE &

ERETEEARHSRIBEEHESR

AREEREEE (TREES) M

directors) of the Company are within the following band. NFUTEE-
2016 2015
—EB—-RF —E-1F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0%1,000,0005% Jt 6 6

During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, no

emoluments were paid by the Group to senior management

or any of the five highest paid employees as an inducement

to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

BE-Z—RER-ZF-HF=ZA=+-—
ALEE AEETROSREEENRE
AREEaHEEZNEFMH UEARSI
IEAREBESAMBENER  RIEHBH

loss of office. B {8 o
TAXATION 15. RIE
2016 2015
—E—RE¥E —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#xT FE T
Current tax: BUEARG 18 ¢
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HhETEREHR 2,524 7,828
— Under-provision in prior year - BEFERERTR - 122
Deferred tax: IEFERLIE
— Current year credit (Note 35) —REEFEEKSE (MEE35) (1,366) =
1,158 7,950
ERSEREERAR

2015/2016 3R]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B Y

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

15. TAXATION - continued 15. RIE— &

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising or derived from the jurisdictions in which

members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

Provision on profits assessable elsewhere has been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries is which the
Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations

and practices in respect thereof.

The National People’s Congress which was concluded on
16 March 2007, the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law was
approved and became effective from 1 January 2008. The
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law introduces a wide range of
changes which include, but are not limited to, the unification
of the income tax rates for domestic-invested and foreign-

invested enterprises at 25%.

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, starting
from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding income tax will
be imposed on dividend relating to profits earned by the
companies established in the PRC in the calendar year
2008 onwards to their foreign shareholders. For investors
incorporated in Hong Kong which hold at least 25% of
equity interest of those PRC companies, a preferential rate of
5% will be applied. The Group has applied the preferential
rate of 5% as the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are directly
held by an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. No deferred tax has been provided for in respect
of the temporary differences attributable to such profits as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31 March
2016 and 2015. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made as the Group did not have assessable profits
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax (2015: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

15. TAXATION - continued 15. MR —#&
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands REHERERABELFHEZHRAIR
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to AR AEEBESMEAEERERR
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin BELZESMES -
Islands.
A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to loss FERAQ R KR E B DB R ZE
before taxation using the statutory rate for the location in ERMEFNEERRRBABEZFEH
which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the FXERERBEFE2RERA X 2%
tax expenses at the effective tax rate are as follows: BRIOT -
2016 2015
—E—-R¥ —E-RF
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FiET
Loss before taxation BRBL AT 18 (12,304) (765,330)
Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated REBEMBEIH EEEEEH 2
at the rates applicable to profits in =AY E A B R ERB A
the tax jurisdiction concerned A B B B IE (1,942) (124,237)
Tax effect of expenses and income RS ON LR -
Not deductible or taxable for tax purposes A~ A 1% = B &2 Fi (1,321) 130,861
Under-provision in prior year BEFERETRE - 122
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REANBEBENHESE 4,421 1,204
Taxation IR 1,158 7,950
16. DIVIDENDS 16. R 2
The directors of the Company do not recommend the RAREEFERERBE-_Z—RF=
payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016 B=tT—HBLEENEARE (=ZZ—1
(2015: Nil). )

e AT
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

17. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 17. F 2P REABLSHRER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
2016 2015
—E—REFE —E-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&x FE T
Loss for the year FAER
Loss attributable to owners of RANBEEAEGER
the Company for the purpose of (AUGHEERELRERE)
basic loss per share calculation (13,802) (772,949)
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—FHE
Number of shares Cigvg
Weighted average number of shares MEFIRE (BUGTE
for the purpose of basic loss per share SREXER) 648,405,300 | 648,405,300

For the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, diluted loss
per share is the same as the basic loss per share as the
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible
note since it would result in an anti-dilutive effect on loss
per share during the year ended 31 March 2016 while the
Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares
during the year ended 31 March 2015.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZ=ZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. MR - BB R iR il
Leasehold Office Motor
improvement equipment vehicle Total
HEMRERE AN RE #t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TET TET TiEx
Cost (5783
As at 1 April 2014 R-E-NFMA—H 5,707 17,708 2,966 26,381
Additions hE 5,264 7,948 1,860 15,072
Acquisitions through business BREBEH2WE
combinations (Note 25) (KiE25) - 68 - 68
Disposals HE - (881) (319) (1,200)
Exchange realignment ERTESE 54 130 23 207
As at 31 March 2015 and RZZE-RFE=ZRA=+-H
1 April 2015 k=ZE-AFNA—H 11,025 24,973 4,530 40,528
Additions NE 1,896 2,018 43 3,957
Disposals HE - (598) (68) (666)
Derecognised upon disposal of BERRALERBAR
subsidiary (Note 26) (BtzE26) - (284) - (284)
Exchange realignment ERAR (1,305) (1,449) (255) (3,009)
As at 31 March 2016 RZE-R"E=R=+-H 11,616 24,660 4,250 40,526
Accumulated depreciation RithE
As at 1 April 2014 RZE-NFMA—H 2,679 9,846 1,287 13,812
Charge for the year FREMBER 1,702 2,683 700 5,085
Written back on disposals Rt EREE - (795) (201) (996)
Exchange realignment ERTESE 24 70 1" 105
As at 31 March 2015 and R-Z-2%=A=1+—-H
1 April 2015 k=E-HAFMA—H 4,405 11,804 1,797 18,006
Charge for the year FRENR 2,820 3,145 484 6,449
Written back on disposals R SRR - (275) (54) (329)
Derecognised upon disposal of BERALERBE AR
subsidiary (Note 26) (BtzE26) - (62) = (62)
Exchange realignment R A% (987) (811) (124) (1,922)
As at 31 March 2016 RZE-R"E=RA=1-H 6,238 13,801 2,103 22,142
Net book value IRERE
As at 31 March 2016 AZ8-X"E=A=1+—-H 5,378 10,859 2,147 18,384
As at 31 March 2015 R-ZE-ZF=ZA=+-H 6,620 13,169 2,733 22,522
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19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. AFHBERRA
Total
et
HK$'000
FET
Cost 5% 3
As at 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and R-ZE—WEMA—H-
1 April 2015 —E-AF=ZA=1+t—HBRK
—E-—HFEMA—H 7,083
Additions NE 7,934
Exchange realignment R (523)
As at 31 March 2016 R-ZE—-—XRXFE=ZA=+—H 14,494
Accumulated depreciation RetinsE
As at 1 April 2014 R=Z—-MNFMA—H 2,353
Charge for the year FREHNRKR 188
Exchange realignment fE 5 A & 12
As at 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RZE—HRF=ZA=+—HK
—E-HFEWM™AB—H 2,553
Charge for the year FRE MR 365
Exchange realignment PE 5 SR (136)
As at 31 March 2016 RZE—RE=ZA=+—H 2,782
Net book value RE$E
As at 31 March 2016 W-E—XRE=A=+—H 11,712
As at 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RFE=A=+—H 4,530
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RE M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS - continued

19. RFHEKRTA -1\

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
Analysed for reporting purpose as: SHEL|AE -
— Current assets (included in trade and - RBEE (GFTAEBSR
other receivable and deposits) HEWRIERZES)
(Note 23) (B&E23) 365 188
— Non-current assets —EREBEE 11,347 4,342
11,712 4,530

As at 31 March 2016, the amount of approximately
HK$10,623,000 (2015: HK$1,909,000) are pledged as
collaterals for Group’s bank borrowings, details please refer
Note 33.

The Group's prepaid lease payments amounts represent
the payments for land use rights situated in the PRC. The
leasehold lands have lease term of 35 to 40 years and the
Group has processed the land use rights of the leasehold

land during the lease term.

Amortisation on prepaid lease payments of approximately
HK$365,000 (2015: approximately HK$188,000) have been
charged to the administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 respectively.

RZE-XRE=ZA=1+—H8 "%
10,623,000/ 7t (=& —H 5 11,909,000
B ZeBERIKHAAREBRITEEZ
Eim FHEBESHEME3S -

AEBREMSHERBERUAFEZ L
EAEZ R -HEL b 2 HEH R3S
ZA0F MAKEREESRREEREL
i 2 - b 5 R o

#9365,00058 7T (=F— A : £9188,000
B 2ANEERBRE S HIREE-R
—RERZE-AF=ZA=t+-HLF
EzHREBERREMEERERPF
o
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—"F=A=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 20. REYME
2016 2015
—E—REFE —E-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Completed investment property ERTREYE 7,199 8,093
At fair value BATFE

As at 1 April MM A—H 8,093 8,306
Fair value change NFEEE (490) (252)
Exchange realignment E & R (404) 39
As at 31 March R=H=+—H 7,199 8,093

Note: B =E
The investment property with net book approximately HK$7,199,000 RZZE-—RE=ZRA=+-—H REMWER

as at 31 March 2016 (2015: approximately HK$8,093,000) is
pledged as collaterals for the Group's bank borrowings, please refer

to Note 33.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTY - continued

(@) Valuation of investment property

20. REME-—E
(a) BEMEZHE

The investment property amounted to approximately
HK$7,199,000 of the Group were stated at fair value
as at 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$8,093,000). The fair
value were arrived at based on the valuations carried
out by an independent firm of qualified professional
valuers, Asset Appraisals Limited, (“AAL"), who have
among their staff members of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and
category of the properties being values. The valuations
conform to the Valuation Standards published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The completed
investment property has been valued using the direct

comparison approach.

The direct comparison approach is adopted where
comparison based on prices information of comparable

properties is made.

There had been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year. In estimating the fair
value of the property, the highest and best use of the

property is their current use.

(b) The analysis of the carrying amount of

investment property is as follows:

R-ZE—RE=ZA=+—H K&
E#%7,199,0008 T (=ZZ —HF:
8,093,000/8 7T ) Z R E W HE RN F
BEIR - A FEDREABIESER
EXGEMPRELEETEERS
PRAT (TAALL) FTfEEEMEE ©
ETAIM S ENAALEE 5 F B
EffE2Eeg8 WHETHEYE
ZUERENERLRMGEELR-
ERGEFEEBIEMBEHIR
ZEBEER -BERBREWEMSEA
HELBCAETHE

ERIMBRBETLLBYENERER
EITHR CEELEBE-

RBEFEFRERANMGEELE
EEMEH RESWENQIFE
B NENESEREEERAREE
Bl o

(b) MRMRZIREESIHMT :

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
Land located in PRC: RAEZ i
Medium-term lease AR A 7,199 8,093

g T e
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z—Z—A<F=A=1+—HLFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTY - continued 20.

(c) Details of the Group’s investment property

and information about the fair value

E?%#—E

()

—RNER-_ZE—HF=HA
:+— B FEEREHVERD

hierarchy as at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are FEHEREHERMT:
as follows:
Fair value as at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31 March 2016
RIZE-RE
ZRA=+—-HZ
1R 24k 3k LFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TET FTHET FTET FiET
Investment property unit NRFE 2 RENEE N
located in PRC - 7,199 - 7,199
Fair value as at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31 March 2015
R-Z-1F
=B=+-RH%
148 28 3% ATE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TERT TER
Investment property unit NRFE 2 RENEE N
located in PRC - 8,093 - 8,093

There were no transfers into or out of level 2 or level 3
during the year 31 March 2016 and 2015.

(d) Investment property leased out under
operating leases
All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating lease to earn rentals are measured using
the fair value model and classified accounted for

investment property.

’I 6 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTY - continued

(d)

(e)

Investment property leased out under
operating leases — continued

The Group leases out its investment property which are
shop units of a 9-storey composite building to various
tenants. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 1 year to 5 years, at the end of which period all
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals. The rental income for investment
property less directly outgoings of approximately
HK$265,000 (2015: approximately HK$321,000).

The property held had committed tenants for the 2.6
years (2015: 3.4 years). At the end of the reporting
period, the Group contracted with tenants for the
following future minimum lease receivables:

20. REME-—E
(d) REEEREHBEZRENE
— &

AEBOZZHEAFHEEREY
X(BA—"RAEBREREZEHE
) HMA—RIOT AP —FZEH
F HREEFERMERR -EY
TEEIAEEC - REBRENEZ
AL W AR E B X% %5265,000
BT (ZE—HF:4321,000/8
JT) °©

FERZMEERK26F (ZF
—hF34F)EFEEAEZHE
F -RAHRSHR AEBECHEAF
R A AR ZRFE W BN 2 SRR A & 40
T:

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FERT
Within one year —FR 273 226
In the second to the fifth years E_ZhF (BFEERME)
inclusive 459 462
732 688
Particulars of investment property (e) MEMRZHER

The particulars of the investment property at 31 March
2016 are as follows:

Location

i B

Type
R

Tenure

0P

R-ZE—RE=ZA=+—H KE
MEZHEBNOT :

Attributable interest
of the Group

FRMFERS

Shop No. 1 on Level 1,

Heng Ye Building, Wusi Road,
Shaowu City, Fujian Province,
the PRC.

HREIEZEART

R IEEKRE
——REH-

Building and land

BFE KT

Medium-term lease

hHEY

99.80%

99.80%

EESERRERLAR
2015/2016 3§

169



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B Y

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—"F=A=+—HILFE

21. GOODWILL 21. &8
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
Cost 5% 3
As at 1 April RMUA—H 787,382 785,521
Additional amounts recognised from RAFEELEBHEBESH
business combinations occurring FriE R 2 BN FRTE (FiFRE25)
during the year (Note 25) - 1,852
Release of goodwill due to disposal of HE—ERBARRRES
a subsidiary (Note 26) (Fff5E£26) (1,852) =
Exchange realignment BE AR (19) 9
As at 31 March R=B=+—H 785,511 787,382
Accumulated impairment losses RitBEGHE
As at 1 April HMA—H 785,169 =
Impairment losses recognised RAFERIAZRERSE
during the year - 785,169
As at 31 March R=A=+—H 785,169 785,169
Carrying amounts IR E
As at 31 March R=A=+-—8H 342 2,213
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

21. GOODWILL - continued

Impairment Tests for Cash-generating Units
("CGU") Containing Goodwill

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more
frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be

impaired.

For purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the following CGUs. The carrying amounts of
goodwill (net of accumulated impairment loss) as at 31
March 2016 and 2015 are allocated as follows:

21. BE &
AEHEZReELEM ([BeE
S RENR

AEBESFETABBRENA RN
BPSEREE R EREREREE
i 3 4T RN (BRI & o

BREEANENS BECIRETIRS
EEXYBN - R-ZB-—R"ERZZE-HF=
A=t—H -BZzREE (ARARH
EER) 2EMNT :

2016 2015
—B—-RE | ZZ-AF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET THET
Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries REREKEBE DA
— retail, wholesales and distribution of - ZE - WMBRIHEHERR
pharmaceutical and related products HEER - -
Quanzhou Huihao RINE 5
— retail of pharmaceutical and —EEEMNREEER
related products 342 361
Xiamen Huihao BB
— wholesales and distribution of —-HERIFEADREBER
pharmaceutical and related products - 1,852
342 2,213

e kA
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21.

172

GOODWILL - continued

Impairment Tests for Cash-generating Units
("CGU") Containing Goodwill - continued

Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 March 2015, as a result of
the promulgation and implementation of the new Good
Supply Practice in Fujian, the PRC which imposes stringent
regulations on pharmaceutical distributor operation and
causes significant decrease in pharmaceutical wholesales
business of Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries. According to
subsequent publications of relevant government policies
in effect, only 10 medicine distributors remained on the
enterprise list and those unqualified distributors are not
qualified to supply pharmaceutical products to public
hospitals and healthcare institutions under new tenders
commensurate with the new Good Supply Practice. Majority
of the existing distributor customers of Nurture Fit and its
subsidiaries, who are not on the new Good Supply Practice
qualified enterprise list, are expected to walk out from
the sector. As a result, the projected sale revenues from
the wholesale business are expected to tumble over the

projection period.

Also, due to the constraint of the existing direct sale
distribution facilities of the Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries
where it is unable to cater for all the public hospitals and
public healthcare institutions over the whole Fujian Province,
the Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries is expected to take up
only part of the market shares on distribution sale business
which are covered by those existing distributor customers. As
a result, there shall be dropped in the overall market share
of the Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries over the wholesale and

distribution segment.

As the carrying of this CGU is lower than the
recoverable amount, impairment losses of approximately
HK$785,169,000 was recognised during the year ended 31

March 2015.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

21.
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g -HUEER D EEHEBRMEEREL
EYHREREWBAR 2 ERit XK
RigiEd o RIFE £ Rz H& T B AEE K
FHE bXEELERBI10BEY D H
& AR EER 22 HESEERRA
EHERBEERECHRBEETARNY
BRRERERBREER AFBIHE
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MBARZAZHERAZFEMB XL
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ZHMOTEOE- At REREKER
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21. GOODWILL - continued

Impairment Tests for Cash-generating Units

(“CGU") Containing Goodwill - continued

Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries - continued

The recoverable amount of this cash generating unit
("CGU") is determined based on a value in use calculation
which uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period and with discount rates of 11.95% per annum.
Cash flow projections during the budgeted period are
based on the same expected gross margins throughout
the budget period. The management considers that it is
prudent and appropriate to adopt a steady 8% annual
growth rate of cash flows projections for each flows
beyond the budgeted period. This growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the market.
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for the market

development.

Quanzhou Huihao

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-years period and with discount rates of
13.36% (2015: 11.95%) per annum. Cash flow projections
during the budgeted period are based on the same
expected gross margins throughout the budget period. The
management considers that it is prudent and appropriate
to adopt a steady 8% (2015: 8%) annual growth rate of
cash flow projections for each flows beyond the budgeted
period. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the market. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which recoverable amount is based would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this CGU. Management determined
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and

its expectations for the market development.

21. B8 -8

EFHEZRSELBAU([RaE
EEA])RENS &
GERRMELT &
BREELEN ((REELEEM]) 27T
WESEDREEAEESHEE  ME
REERBEERBFRtEZRELFH
MBEERSHZRESRETRR - IR,
BRBFNS%FTE-REHAZRE
REFR DERBEREHRERZRE
RMEMNEAE - EEERL KNFEEDR
BREESREZREFERRSWEETE
ZERBEE -UEBEREXFBBEMHE 2R
PR RR -EEERBBERARA
BT ERE2ENEEREEEFN R

RMEH
hReEESEVZ2AKREEERESE
REETEEE mMERABEERESER
it EZ RERLFHMBEERSHZ
REREEA URMBREEEF13.36%
(ZE—FRF:11.95%) T E-FAEHRK
ZBRERETERANERZEREHANER
ZHEAENEAE - BEEERA KA
EHERERECBEFIERES% (=
T-HF 8% )HENBEEREE It
BREWFABATEZRATIGERE
EEEMEG HAEUTKRESBEMKEZE
ER[|AMERZEAEEEE T8E
BB EeELEBENVZEAAERREA
WESEAE EEBREBIRERE
HMiGRRE2BAEEEEERNE-
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21.

22.

174

GOODWILL - continued 21. e -1
Impairment Tests for Cash-generating Units EFRBZHeELEMU([REE
("CGU") Containing Goodwill - continued HEM])RENR &
Xiamen HuiHao EMER
For the year ended 31 March 2015, the recoverable BE-_Z—HF=A=+—HLFE" It
amount of this CGU is determined based on a value in ReEEENzARBESEIRECA
use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on BEFTEEE MEAEEREBEEEREM
financial budgets approved by management covering a HEZRELFHMBREEMBLZR
5-years period and with discount rate of 11.95% per annum. EREFER URBREGF11.95%5t
Cash flow projections during the budgeted period are based H-EEHAZEERETARIEREME
on the same expected gross margins throughout the budget FHEMAEB Z2FEAERNEZFE -EEE
period. The management considers that it is prudent and RB EARERRRERECBEFE
appropriate to adopt a steady 8% annual growth rate of RESUHENBFEREE WIBERE
cash flows projections for each flows beyond the budgeted WABBHEZRAFHERE -BHE
period. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term BiE TRESEMEEZTEEZUR
average growth rate for the market. Management believes %EE ENELEANE£E  EEERE
on which reasonable amount is based would not cause BERBRREASMESER2ENBEEE
recoverable amount of this CGU. Management determines BEERR - RBE_T—R~"EF=A=+—
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and HEFER AEEBEHEEMELK &
the expectations for the market development. During the EHEFBERSTATE.
year ended 31 March 2016, Xiamen Huihao was disposed by
the Group, the goodwill is included in the determination of
the loss on disposal.
INVENTORIES 22. &8
Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial REEMBRRERZ2FEERE:
position comprises:
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FiET
Finished goods E ¥ m 107,578 124,849
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 2. ESRAMEBERZRERZS
DEPOSITS

2016 2015
—E—REF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT T&T
Trade receivables B EWFE 194,258 282,077
Bills receivable i 5,854 6,229
Prepayments and deposit paid EAREREAZRS 50,213 121,230
Prepaid lease payments (Note 19) FEAEERE (MEE19) 365 188
Other receivables HihE W8 34,454 19,988
285,144 429,712

Less: Impairment loss recognised in R E At IR HE R WY
respect of other receivables EEE (973) (1,026)
284,171 428,686

As at 31 March 2016, bills receivable of approximately
HK$5,854,000 (2015: HK$6,229,000) will be matured within
six months after the end of the reporting period. All the bills

receivable are denominated in RMB.

RZZBE-—RE=ZA=1+—0 EREEY
5,854,000/ 7t (=& —F F 16,229,000
BT BRRERREEAREE
EEREEGUARYEEE

s T
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RE B mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—"F=A=+—HILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSITS - continued

Included in the Groups other receivables were the

value added tax (“VAT"”) recoverable of approximately
HK$7,997,000 as at 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$8,171,000).

Payment terms with customers from the pharmaceutical

wholesale and distribution business and pharmaceutical

retail chain business are mainly on credit. Invoices are

normally payable from 30 to 90 days of issuance. The ageing

analysis of trade receivables based on the invoices date is as

23. HAREMBERRARESR

—#&
RZBE-—RE=A=+—H0 TAKXE
B H fth FE U TR IE 2 AT W B IS E R (35
BER])#7,997,0008 T (ZF—HF:
8,171,000/ 7t ) °

EQMBROEERURESSEEH
FEBBEFHRRARNEERTIRKR
ME-—RENZZHAHK30E0HRNX
F-RBEZAMNE Z BRBRIENRER D
T :

follows:

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHE T
Within 90 days 90H AW 151,264 213,845
91 — 180 days 91£180H 35,957 50,607
181 — 365 days 1812365H 7,037 17,593
Over 365 days HiB365H 5,397 5,222
199,655 287,267

Less: Impairment loss recognised in B S ERFIERER N
respect of trade receivables WEEE (5,397) (5,190)
194,258 282,077
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RE M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSITS - continued

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts which
are past due at the end of the reporting period but against
which the Group has not recognised an allowance for
doubtful receivables because there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a
legal right to offset against any amounts owed by the Group
to the counterparty. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties and
the directors assessed that the amounts are not expected to

be recovered.

23. HAREMBERRARESR

— iR

EXFREEzEZRBRUGRRBERKRE
HIARC B - A S B I T D R AR
BEzeB FERAABRENEEEER
WEBASHANMFER T TUE - KE
B ER G EERTAENEARIA
fEEMRER - NEEERERN A UALE
B 45 XX 5 8 F B E AR E 8 o (BB
HENRYRESREMBRENT S
EENAAAEFZESETERE -

Ageing of impaired trade receivables ERERSERRAZER
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET THET
Over 365 days HiB365H 5,397 5,190




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=—Z—~"F=A=1+—HILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

23. HAREMBERRARESR

DEPOSITS - continued — iR
Ageing of past due but not impaired =¥ R CRCRCE F-41:00 ]
2016 2015
—EB—-RF —E-—0fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Overdue by: 2EE:
1 =90 days 1£90H 35,957 50,607
91 — 180 days 91£180H 7,037 17,593
Over 180 days HiB180H - 32
42,994 68,232

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balances are
balances with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$42,994,000 (2015: HK$68,232,000) which was past due
at the end of the reporting period for which the Group not

provided for impairment loss.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RE M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23.

DEPOSITS - continued
Movement in the provision for impairment loss
recognised in respect of trade receivables is

summarised as follows:

HAREMBELREARES®
— iR

Tk 52 55 R My % R 5 o O S 1R I O
SEEEmT

2016 2015

—E—-R¥ —ZE—FHF

HK$000 HK$’000

THET TERT

Balance as at 1 April KA — B 2&& 5,190 1,336
Impairment losses recognised ERRAZBEEE 1,176 3,961
Impairment losses reversed BB S B 3 B (683) (130)
Exchange realignment FE AR (286) 23
Balance as at 31 March MR=ZA=+—H 24tk 5,397 5,190

Included in allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
HK$5,397,000 (2015: HK$5,190,000). For overdue debts,
based on the past default experience, payment history of
customers and subsequent settlement, the Group assessed
the corporate customers for potential impairment losses.
Full provision has been made for individual trade receivables
aged over one year with no subsequent settlement as
historical evidence shows that such amounts are not

recoverable.

REERERTAERNEZE S BRI
15 2 #4582 55,397,000 T (=2 — 4
% 15,190,000 t) - B HEHE M S
AEBEREBIWBIARBZLR &P
RREHEREBEETIMEERTFZE
EREFE RNAFCARRER—F
HEeEITRLE @R E S RBRREBEFE
2HEBRE REARBBEZREER It
LLBEEAEWE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=—ZF—"F=HA=1+—HILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

18

DEPOSITS - continued

Movement in the provision for impairment loss

23. HRARREMERRARES

R 5 it Uy ok O 52 oz 2 SR [ K £ S

of the Group recognised in respect of other RERBEDEEMT -
receivables is summarised as follows:

2016 2015
—E—-R¥ —E-EHF
HK$000 HK$’000
THET THExT
Balance as at 1 April RIUA— B 2&& 1,026 1,152
Impairment losses recognised ERAZBEEE - =
Impairment losses reversed BB S B 3 B - =
Exchange realignment FE AR (53) (126)
Balance as at 31 March MR=ZA=+—H 24tk 973 1,026

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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24. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of

which are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2016

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

24. B AT ZHFETS

RZZB-AR"F=ZRA=1+-R0 %2
AZEEMBAR (IRBERQF)

are as follows: HBOT
Particulars of
Place and date of issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary Percentage of equity, effective
Name of registration Class of share capital/ interest and voting power held
subsidiaries and operation share held registered capital by the Company Principal activities
i3 g BTRMREERS/
KEARER REEHRRAN  FERHEH HREFZHE FARRACHRE RREGRAREZLA TERE
Direct Indirect
Ef M
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-RE| ZF-0F| IB-RE| ZT-1F
% % % %
Luxuriant Expand Global Investments British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$100/US§50,000 100 100 - - Investment holding
Limited 10 April 2012
KNERREERAT ABRLEE/ LBR  100%7/50000%7 REBR
ZZ-CEQMAtH
Timely Hero Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1/US$50,000 - - 100 100 Investment holding
1 December 2006
REEXERLA ABRLEE/ EER 1%70,/50,000% 7 REZR
“ZZXE1tZF-B
Nurture Fit Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1/US$50,000 - - 100 100 Investment holding
16 July 2009
REARAF ABRLEE/ EER 1%70,/50,000% 7 REZR
“ZZAELATAR
Huihao (HK) Group Limited Hong Kong/ Ordinary HK$1,000,000 - - 100 100 Investment holding
("Huihao Hong Kong") 1 March 2004
Bi (BR)BEEE B/ ZBR 1,000,000% 7 REBR
BRAR ([2#EE]) “2ENE=F-H
Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical The PRC/ Registered RMB55,856,350 - - 99.80 99.29 Pharmaceutical retail
China Company Limited 30 November 2001 chain business in the PRC
("Huihao Sihai")*
BREFMBBEEHERAT HE/ AfER AR #55,856,3507 REEERTE
((BFmEl) ZEE-F4+-AZ1H BHRERY
Fuzhou Province Huihao The PRC/ Registered RMB80,000,000 - - 75 100 Pharmaceutical wholesale
City Huihao Pharmaceutical 9 July 2008 and distribution business
Co. Limited (“Fuzhou Huihao")* in the PRC
BRABNTEREXERAR HE/ AMER AR #80,000,0007 REEZERHER
(IEN=s]) “2ENELANE PEEH
Putian Huihao Medicine Co. Limited The PRC/ Registered RMB10,000,000 - - 75 100 Pharmaceutical wholesale
("Putian Huihao" )t 11 July 2008 and distribution business
in the PRC
BEERIHBEERAT HE/ AfER AR%10,000,0007 RAEERHER
(R “EE\FLAT-H PEER
Fujian Huiming Medicine Co. Limited The PRC/ Registered RMB20,000,000 - - 75 100 Pharmaceutical wholesale
("Fujian Huiming")* 10 July 2008 and distribution business
in the PRC
RREEAREERAA HE/ imas  ARE20,000000% REBERHER
(IEe=H)): “2ENFLATH PEEH
BEESEZEARATE

2015/2016 &R
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE—Z—"F=HA=1+—HILFE

24. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 24. BB AT ZHF &
- continued
(a) Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of (@) R=ZBE—R"FE=A=+—H &2
which are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2016 FAZEENB LT (HEEREAT)
are as follows: — continued HBWT: —&

Particulars of

Place and date of issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary Percentage of equity, effective
Name of registration Class of share capital/ interest and voting power held
subsidiaries and operation share held registered capital by the Company Principal activities
MR/ ER BTRMERERS/
HELRER REEWNRAN  FRRAER HEREFZHE FREARACRE EREGRARMZLA TERE
Direct Indirect
Ef M
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-RE| ZF-0F| IB-RE| ZT-1F
% % % %
Huihao Medicine (Quazhou) Co. Ltd* The PRC/ Registered RMB10,000,000 - - 75 100 Pharmaceutical wholesale
17 May 2007 and distribution business
in the PRC
EREE (M) BRARY HE/ EMER AR#10,000,0007 REEZERHER
“ETLERATLA PEER
Huihao Pharmaceutical (Nanping) The PRC/ Registered RMB12,500,000 - - 45 60 Pharmaceutical wholesale
Company Limited* 18 April 1991 and distribution business
in the PRC
EFEE (BT ERAR hE/ AfEx  AR#12,500,000% RYBERHER
-AA-$BAtNA PEER
i The English names of the Company's subsidiaries in ’ AQAFTEMBLRZRBEES
the PRC are transliteration of their respective Chinese BRAXEEE R KX B
names have not has been registered. REEM o
In the opinion of the directors, there is no subsidiary ESZRH BE-ZT-HF=A
that have non-controlling interests individually that are =Et—HILEFE HSEHNEQFHE
material to the Group and therefore no information is ERHAEEMSBE RN EE
disclosed for these non-wholly owned subsidiaries for R MU BMIBFBEZSHEL2EM
the year ended 31 March 2015. BRRZER-

’I 82 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE=Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

24. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
- continued
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

that have material non-controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-

controlling interests:

24. BB AT ZHF &

Proportion of ownership

(b) HREXFRZRERZFZEM

BLBZEE

TRETASERERENFERE
HmZFEEWMBAR 2B

Place of Incorporation interests and voting rights
and principal held by non-controlling Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary place of business interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
BB IB%R FRRERKT R
WELRRR FERKHE EERBFELA SEFHRAREEZRT RtFRRES

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
—B-R% —E-1f —B-R% —E-1f —B-R% —Z-1f%
% % HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET TR
Fuzhou Huihao The PRC 25 N/A 244 N/A 60,940 N/A
BNEH HE rER rER TER

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before

intragroup eliminations.

FRLTEEERERFERESZ
MELARZMBERBERS W
T-UTHBENBEZASREBR
NEBYHHER 2 S

EESERRERLAR
2015/2016 3§

183
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z—Z—~"F=HA=1+—HILFE

24. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
- continued

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

184

24. BB AT ZHR— &

that have material non-controlling interests

(b) WAEXERRBEZEZAM
BAEZHEE - |

— continued

Fuzhou Huihao RN E
2016
—E—REF
HK$'000
T#xT
Current assets mBEE 471,582
Non-current assets ERBEE 6,212
Current liabilities EBEE (234,032)
Non-current liabilities FERBEME -
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 B #EH A E(L R 182,822
Non-controlling interests FERER 60,940

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE=Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

24. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
- continued

24. BB AT ZHR— &

(b) REXFRZRERZIFZEM

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

that have material non-controlling interests

BATZHM-—®

- continued
Fuzhou Huihao - continued EMEY &
2016
—E-RE
HK$'000
THET
Revenue Wy 1,120,351
Profit for the year F WAl 2,242
Profit attributable to owners of the Company AN F#EHE AEEEF 1,998
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests — JE 35 A% 7 &5 FE {5 55 7 244
Profit for the year F =R 2,242
Total comprehensive loss attributable to BAREEARGEZEEELE
owners of the Company (3,792)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to FERERELMEEEEZRE
non-controlling interests (1,686)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRE2AEEEHAER (5,478)

EESERRERLAR
2015/2016 3§

185
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 @2 —F—<"F=A=+—HLFE

24. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

24. BB AT ZHF &

- continued

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) MBEXRIEZRERZFEZEN
that have material non-controlling interests BATZHE &
- continued

Fuzhou Huihao - continued

ia M B —

2016
ZE—R%F
HK$°000
FET
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ENFEERERRE =
Net cash inflow from operating activities REEBREEZRESRANFTRE 227,643
Net cash inflow from investing activities REXEBRELECZHESRANRE 2,440
Net cash outflow from financing activities MEEKEECEESARAE FEHE (90,835)
Net cash inflow BERAFHE 139,248
Significant restrictions EXREH
Cash and short-term deposits of RMB held in the PRC are RABEUARBEENHEESRESHFER
subject to local exchange control regulations. These local SEBFEME B ESEH c S E HhE
exchange control regulations provide for restrictions on NS SR B R B 2 ¥ AN E AR H R
exporting capital from the PRC, other than through normal HEEB—RIRERNERI

dividends.

186
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RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE=Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

25. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 25. KRB A 7
Proportion
Date of of shares
Principal activity acquisition acquired Consideration
TEEH I % B &A 1t Fi§ B%: 173 L 1 - |
% HK$'000
FE T
Xiamen Huihao Pharmaceutical wholesale 21 April 2014 60 6,204
(note a) and distribution business
in the PRC
EfET (Misfa) RABZERMBERIHEER —E—NF
mAE=+—H
Nanping Huihao Pharmaceutical wholesale 15 June 2014 60 9,417
(note b) and distribution business
in the PRC
MFELF (Mab) RPBEZERAERDHEER —E—-F
AATEH
15,621

Note: P &E -

(@) The name of Company has been changed from EF9iE R 5 (@ REBTHE ZARZEBHEME
BHERAT to BFEL (EFM)BRAA after acquisition BEEFRARNEFEASTIERE (EM)
completed. BRAT e

(b)  The name of Company has been changed from BZ&ES b) RURBERR ZARZEBHBESR
WEBRLA to BiFEES (BF)BPRAF after acquisition HEEHXEBRARBSEABIFES (B
completed. F)BRAF -

Xiamen Huihao and Nanping Huihao were acquired so as KWEEMEAREFTEFEERFEERX

to continue the expansion of the Group's pharmaceutical AEBzERMBERDHER-

wholesale and distribution business.

e T e
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RE B mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z—Z—~"F=HA=1+—HILFE

25.

18

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

25. BB AT — &

— continued
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the REMBHOMFKBEERMEZA
date acquisition: f":
Xiamen Nanping
Huihao Huihao Total
EFEH [CES 4 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET
Property, plant and equipment ME BERZE - 68 68
Trade and other receivables B R EMERE 5,365 29,652 35,017
Inventories FE 1,171 10,701 11,872
Cash and cash equivalents BERBRESEER 4,363 5,685 10,548
Trade and other payables BES5REMEMNTE (4,147) (17,855) (22,002)
Bank borrowings RITEN - (12,556) (12,556)
Net assets EEFE 7,252 15,695 22,947

The receivables acquired in these transactions with a fair
value of approximately HK$5,365,000 for Xiamen Huihao
and approximately HK$29,652,000 for Nanping Huihao
were approximate to their gross contractual amounts and all

balance was expected to be collectible.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

25. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

25. BB AT — &

- continued
Goodwill arising on acquisition: BEEECHR:
Xiamen Nanping
Huihao Huihao Total
EMERF BFEEH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET TAT
Cash consideration transferred EE/HSRE 6,204 9,417 15,621
Add: non-controlling interests m:EERER 2,900 6,278 9,178
Less: fair value of identifiable net assets acquired i : AT FTNEEE &
FHEZATE (7,252) (15,695) (22,947)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEELECEE 1,852 - 1,852

The non-controlling interests in Xiamen Huihao and
Nanping Huihao recognised at the acquisition date was
measured by reference to the present ownership instruments
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of their

identifiable net assets.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Xiamen Huihao because
the cost of the combination included a control premium.
In addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefits
of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of Xiamen
Huihao. These benefits are not recognised separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria

for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is

expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

RUBAHBRINEMZF REFEET
ZHERERDSERKNHERETLR
BERENENEERETCEINE
EE It E -

HREHRABEEFEEE RRBE
MEFEEBE M RERENMX
TeRESEEEMEHFNERTHREX
B-WABR - RRTEREREZESLT
EFENANEERNEE ZEMNETE
HEELMER EARSNRLTFE
APREBLEE 2RBRLE-

BMEZEZWBEERELEZHERHNLES
A BLE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=—ZF—"F=HA=1+—HILFE

25.

19

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
- continued

Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries:

25. BB AT — &

WM B AR Z B &M HiBH:

Xiamen Nanping
Huihao Huihao Total
EMER BFEH AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
Consideration paid in cash LBEIH2RE 6,204 9,417 15,621
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired i : WBERERREZE
BEEZH (4,863) (5,685) (10,548)
Net cash outflow ReRERR 1,341 3,732 5,073
Impact of acquisitions on the results of the Group KEHEKERRZE

Revenue of HK$14,348,000 and loss of HK$1,630,000
contributed by Xiamen Huihao, Revenue of HK$98,813,000
and profit of HK$738,000 contributed by Nanping Huihao
were recognised in the Group's loss for the year ended 31
March 2015.

Had these business combination be effective at 1 April 2014,
the Revenue of the Group would have been approximately
HK$1,604,192,000, and the loss for the year would have
been approximately HK$773,366,000. The directors of the
Group consider these number to represent an approximate
measure of the performance of the combined group on
an annualised basis and to provide a reference point for

comparison in future period.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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& P9 47 B it 2 k55 14,348,00058 T &
&5 181,630,0008 T M FEFE R Z W
#198,813,0005% Jt & 7 738,0007% 7T 3
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WZEEBKEHER - —TNFN
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

26. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY
On 22 October 2015, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Xiamen Huihao, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement and agreed to sell the entire
60% equity interests in Xiamen Huihao held by Fuzhou
Huihao, with a consideration of RMB3,266,000 (equivalent

26. HEMHRB LT

R-ZE—HF+AZ+=HB KAEZMHE
BEFEEEMBAREMEFITL—HEE
HEEEERHERMNEFEE 2B EYT
2 EB60% M fE - KB A AR ¥3,266,000
7t (FZ R #94,054,000/8 7T ) - HESHE

to approximately HK$4,054,000). The disposal was

completed on 22 October 2015.

Summary of the effects of the disposal of Xiamen Huihao are

HEEMBRF2TEHMRNT

ERZE—FHF+AZT+ZHEMK"

as follows:
HK$'000
FE T
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BWREFREZEEEHKE 4,054
Analysis of assets and liabilities over SkERHENEERARSH:
which control was lost:
Goodwill (G5 1,852
Property, plant and equipment ME BERRZE 222
Inventories FE 1,139
Trade receivables, prepayments and other receivables B 5 FE U FRIE ~ T FRIE & H h FE U FRIE 4,996
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEESEEEH 1,947
Trade and other payables B R EHMEMNTRIE (3,525)
Tax payable FEAFFi 8 (53)
Net assets disposed HEEEFEE 6,578
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—MKBEBATRZEIE:
Consideration received 2 W E 4,054
Less: Net assets disposed of W HEEEFRE (6,578)
Less: Release of translation reserve BRI E S (139)
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,891
Loss on disposal HERE (772)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of HEEMEFEEZHSRABRE:
Xiamen Huihao:
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BWREFREZEBEEHNKE 4,054
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of & EHEZHREREAELZEEE &4 (1,947)
2,107

EESERRERLAR
2015/2016 3§
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z—Z—A<F=A=1+—HLFE

26. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY - continued

27.

192

26.

The loss on disposal is included in the loss for the year

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income. For the period from 1 April 2015

to the date of disposal,

Xiamen Huihao was engaged

in wholesales and distribution of pharmaceutical and

related products in the PRC. Revenue of approximately
HK$5,969,000 and loss of approximately HK$761,000

contributed by Xiamen Huihao was recognised in the

Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2016.

HEME AT — &
HEBBIF AL FEGREERRHME
HBRaXZEBEN -B-ZE—HEF0A—
AREZHEARLINE BEMEFRPE
B REEERIBERHE - EME
57 B 8k 2 W 2 #95,969,000/8 T R BB LN
761,000 TR AEBBE T — < F
ZA=t+—BLFEZEBRRER-

AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW 27. BIRA R B AT ZHRIEA
SUBSIDIARIES
2016 2015
—E—REF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Name of fellow subsidiaries ARBEATZEE
Edward Hospital Company Limited EEEEEERRAGRAA 3,571 3,763
Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital Company Limited — ZkiBhBEERER A 4,610 4,858
8,181 8,621

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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R e B SR

M &

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW 27. B A RMEB LT ZRIA — &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
The maximum amounts due from a fellow subsidiaries BE - RERFE—HF=A=+—
outstanding during the years ended 31 March 2016 and HIEFE  EUREZEME A B iR U E
2015 are as follows: HNEeSS5EWT:
2016 2015
—e—-x% | —2-uF
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FET
Name of fellow subsidiaries AEMEARZEEB
Edward Hospital Company Limited EEREEERARAA 3,763 3,763
Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital Company Limited — EKiEhBEE R AR A F 4,858 4,858
The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, ERERHBARAREAEKE RER
interest-free and recoverable on demand. BREREE-
EREEREEBRAR

2015/2016 3§
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RE B mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ—Z—

NE=BA=1+—HILFEE

28. AMOUNT DUE FROM THE IMMEDIATE

HOLDING COMPANY

28. B HERKLARRER

2016 2015
—E—-R¥F —E2—H%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Name of the immediate HERRAFTRE
holding company
Greatly Wealth RE& - 15

The maximum outstanding balance of amount due from the

BE_Z-FR-ZE-IFLEFEE

immediate holding company during the years ended 2016 WEEZEZERARAREBEZES RERLH
and 2015 are as follows: mT
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ZE-5F
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FTHT FiERT
Name of the immediate HEEERATRE
holding company
Greatly Wealth RE 15 15
The amount due from the immediate holding company is BREEZERARREREER RER
unsecured, interest-free and recoverable on demand. BIREREE-

19
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RE M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

29. e RBeFERBREHHA

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS BITER
2016 2015
—E—RE | —B-F4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT 35T
Cash and cash equivalents HENREEEEE 203,500 43,029

At as 31 March 2016, the cash at banks and in hand of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$179,488,000 (2015: approximately HK$39,237,000).
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on the
prevailing market rate which at 0.30% per annum during
the reporting period (2015: 0.35%). The cash and cash
equivalents are deposits with creditworthy banks with no

recent history of default.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
but conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorization to

conduct foreign exchange business.

Pledged bank deposits:

As at 31 March 2016, a bank deposit denominated in
RMB amounted to approximately HK$ 6,096,000 (2015:
approximately HK$12,970,000) were pledged as collateral
for bank borrowings and the effective interest rate on
pledged bank deposits is 3.5% (2015: 2.4%).

RZBE-—ARF=RA=1+—B AEE
ARBIBZRTREERFERSEH
#£179,488,0008 L (ZE—HF 4
39,237,000 7T) c AR EHEA R SR1T
BERBTHISFERZE0.30% UFENFIE
BEFIE (ZE—HF:035%)  BHER
REeEEBADERERIRENTH
BEEBRIFZRIT

ARBTAEELRAR IS EAR
LR B SN T B B R E O S E
EHEPRAGE SERNEEEAT
08 B B B R 1T 5 E A 1
RTBARERRARIER

EEREMK:

REZZB-—RE=ZA=+—H LAR®3I
B2 R 1TFNEX6,096,000/8 T (= F
—FHF :#912,970,000/& 5T ) T3 B4R 1T f&
EERERABFRRCERRITERZE
BRAZERIS% (ZE—FHF:124%) °
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RE B mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—"F=A=+—HILFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

30. B 5 R H L FE TR IF

2016 2015

—E—-RE —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET TET

Trade payables B 5 ENRIE 162,420 168,680
Bills payable BN EE 16,308 18,697
Accruals and other payables st E R Rk H MBS RIE 36,438 37,419
Receipt in advance FE UK IE 17,912 17,321
233,078 242,117

Included in accruals and other payables were the deposits R=ZEB-—RE=ZA=+—H Eit#&E

from customers of approximately HK$13,419,000 as at 31
March 2016 (2015: approximately HK$13,887,000).

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

AREMESNREEREREZF 2
£#13,419,0008B T (ZE—HF: 4

13,887,000 JT) °

B RARENRBRONAOT

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-—HEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE&xT FHE T

Within 90 days 90H KAy 106,571 115,166
91 — 180 days 91£180H 30,174 21,154
181 — 365 days 181£365H 10,094 12,250
Over 365 days HiB365H 15,581 20,110
162,420 168,680

’I 9 6 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016




30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31.

32.

33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

- continued

RE M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

30. RS R H B B IR — 4

The average credit period on purchases of certain goods in

range from 30 to 90 days.

The bills payable are matured within six months from the

ended of the reporting period. And the bills payable were

secured by certain pledged bank deposits. All the bills

payable are denominated in RMB.

AMOUNT DUE TO THE ULTIMATE 31.

HOLDING COMPANY

Amount due to the ultimate holding company is unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

AMOUNTS DUE TO FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES  32.

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest

free and repayable on demand.

BEETERZVHEEHNN F30E90
Rz

o
On

o

BNZEBEREPRETFER R -
BNREUE TERFRITERERE
H-BERNRBIEUARYTE

B REEZERLFIRER

B BAERATRERREN 2R
AREREE -

EfRARMEATZHREA
EARRNEL D2 REREER 28
RAZERMEE-

—
BANK BORROWINGS 33. BITER
2016 2015
—E—REFE —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T8 T
Bank borrowings — secured RITEE-—HBIKF 32,396 121,454
2016 2015
—E—REF —E-RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T8t
Carrying amount repayables: EEERTSHE:
On demand or within one year shown BRERF—FR
under current liabilities SFARBERE 32,396 121,454
EREEREEBRAR

I 2wy

2015/2016 3§
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e B Y

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—"F=A=+—HILFE

33.

34.

198

BANK BORROWINGS - continued

Notes:

(@) As at 31 March 2016, the secured bank borrowings of
approximately HK$17,998,000 (2015:
HK$121,454,000) were secured by corporate guarantee by

approximately

inter-group company, carries variable interest rate at 4.30% to
5.66% per annum (2015: 7.28% to 9%).

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group had
additional secured bank borrowings of approximately
HK$14,398,000 carries fixed interest rate at 6.42% per
annum and were secured by prepaid lease payments.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the outstanding
balance of 2015 of HK$121,454,000 was fully repaid.

(b)  Details of pledged assets were pledged to bank to secure the
Group's banking facilities, please refer to the Note 44.

() The carrying amount of the Group's bank borrowings are all
originally denominated in RMB.

CONVERTIBLE NOTE

The convertible note (the “Convertible Note”) issued on
1 June 2015, the maturity date of Convertible Note was
from 1 June 2015 to 31 May 2017. The conversion share

price was HK$0.65.

The Convertible Note contains two components, liability and
equity elements. The equity element is presented in equity

heading “Convertible note reserve”.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using
a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
note. The residual amount, representing the value of the
equity conversion component, was included in shareholders’

equity in convertible note reserve.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

33.

34.

B|ITEE-&
GER
@ R-B-—AF=ZA=+-H0 BEN

RITHEE 17,998,000 T (=B — A
F:4121,454,0008 7T) LEB R A A
REN A BRRERT WIRZFEEF
EA30EES.66E (ZE—HF :7.28E
Z9E )R

BE-ZE-—R"E=ZA=1+—HLHF
E AEB2ENIEEARTEED
14,398,000 7t 12 [E & F F =6.42E 5F
B WA MNBEREEEE-

BE-Z-—~"FE=A=+—HILEE"
—E R FHAREELERR121,454,000
BTOEHEER

(b) FEEBTEMUERAEEERRT
MECCEFEEZFEBESHNE
44 -

(0 AEEZRTEEZRAEZAZHN
ARBIIE-

CE: Y2 %
REZB-HAFRA-—BBRITZALRE
B(TARREE] HIABANF=-F
—BEFEXRA-BE-Z—tFHA=+—
FHIR - EIRER0.658TT

TRREERERERESMA D - #i
oM ERRITRREERZBIET2
5l o

BENS 2 AFENASERTRRE
FZm%ﬂ~+§ SES BV b

B2 EE HHATRREEHEZR
§%§W°



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

34. CONVERTIBLE NOTE - continued 34.

The Convertible Note recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position was calculated as follows:

AT AR R —
REERBRRREBRZ TRRERZ
AEMT

HK$°000
T#T
Fair value of Convertible Note issued on 1 June 2015 R="T—HAE A —HB®{TZ
AR EEZAFE 84,292
Equity component &I D (9,866)
Liability component on initial recognition and NTHEABEZEED s KRR
amortised cost at 1 June 2015 “E-AFARA—HZEBERAK 74,426
Amortised cost at 1 April 2015 R-ZE—HFWA—HZ#EERLK -
Issue of Convertible Note BOOUBRRERE 74,426
Transaction costs attributable to issue of BOUBRKREEEGEZRS KA
Convertible Note (1,825)
Interest expense FMERREX 8,277
Interest payable AR E (3,611)

At 31 March 2016 RZZE—XR"E=HA=+—H 77,267

As at 31 March 2016, the outstanding principal amount of
Convertible Note was HK$84,292,000 (2015: Nil).

Interest expense on the Convertible Note is calculated using
the effective interest method by applying the effective

interest rate of 13.11% to the liability component.

R-ZBE—ARF=A=1+—H 2R EE
ZIEAREBEAREEA84,292,000/8 7T (=
E—hF TET) -

AHRRBEZANEHAXITNERERFS
FEREERT 2EBRFNERI3NETE
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—"F=A=+—HILFE

35. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax balances recognised

5. REERFAR

UTABZE-Z—X"ER-_ZF-—HFIE
and movements thereon during the years ended 2016 and FERAZETEREHEEMRRESE:
2015.

Deferred tax liabilities: EEHRIEE RS :

Convertible

Note
CIE: Y3 %
HK$'000
TET
As at 1 April 2014, 31 March 215 and 1 April 2015 R-ZZE—MNFEFNA—H - ZF—51F
=A=+—HERZ=ZZE—HFMA—H -
Addition due to Convertible Note H TR R A58 0 1,929
Credited to profit or loss (Note 15) s AEE (MizE15) (1,366)
As at 31 March 2016 H=

—~"F=ZA=1+—H 563

RB|BEHR AEBELERBAREEE
A FER S5 R R IERBUE R - HREEBL
TR 18 2 M 8 1 R 2 R RE R R B T

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has no
unutilised tax losses, available to set off against future

assessable profits. No deferred tax asset has been

recognised in respect of the unutilised tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profits streams of the subsidiaries
which incurred the tax losses. These tax losses in Hong Kong
may be carried forward indefinitely and the tax losses in PRC

may be expired within five years.

2 O O WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. ¥ &
Nominal
value of
Number of ordinary
shares shares
HiERZ
B in & B IR {E
HK$'000
FHE T
Authorised: ERE -
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015, R=—Z-NFEMA—H-
1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 —E-RHFE=ZA=+—H"
ordinary share of HK$0.01 —E-AFMA-BRK
—E-RFE=ZA=+—H
BREECNEBITZEEBR 2,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHAR:
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015, R=-Z-—NFEM™MA—H-
1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 —E-HFE=ZA=+—H"
ordinary share of HK$0.01 —E-HFMA—ARK
—E-RF=ZA=+—H
BREECNEBTZEEBR 648,405,300 6,484
37. RESERVES 37. f#fm
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements AEERE-—ZE—A~ER-ZE-RF=
therein for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 are A=+-—BLEEZRERESBH SR
presented in the consolidated statement of changes of 2INGEEMBERR2FEREZ TR

equity of the consolidated financial statements.
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e B Y

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=—Z—~"F=A=1+—HILFE

38. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN 38. R BARIZHEBRIER S

SUBSIDIARIES

On 12 May 2015, the Group disposed 25% equity interests
of Fuzhou Huihao by way of increasing the registered capital
of Fuzhou Huihao from RMB60,000,000 to RMBS80,000,000.
The non-controlling interests of Fuzhou Huihao agreed
to pay RMB20,000,000 for the increase capital of Fuzhou
Huihao. The Group recognised an increase of non-controlling
interests and decrease in other reserve of approximately
HK$63,409,000 and HK$29,208,000 respectively. As at 31
March 2016, the outstanding balance of non-controlling
interests contribution was RMB8,670,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group further
acquired 0.51% equity interests of Huihao Sihai by way of
increasing the registered capital of RMB40,000,000 from
RMB15,856,000 to RMB55,856,000 of the capital of Huihao
Sihai.

2 O WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

B

R—ZZ-—HEFHEA+-A AEEE
BREENEFZEZMELABHARY
60,000,0007T 1% N & A K #80,000,000
TRARMEERMNELF Z25%KRE 18
MWEFZHERERZRDZRBMNELE
&+ AR%20,000,0007T ° A5 E R
IE 12 R R AR 4R 0 I H A R R A 2 Bl
63,409,000 7t }2.29,208,0005& 7T o IR =
E-REZA=+—HB FERERITE
2 RE &SRR AR Y8,670,0007T °

REBE=ZZE—~"E=ZA=t+—HBLE
ER AEEZEBEEFNEZIME
NE AR ¥15,856,0007T 1 i A R #
40,000,0007t £ A R #55,856,0007T Z
FAME—SKRBEFINE 20.51%K
o
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

RE M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

39. ELFIMFBIKR &

As at 31 March 2016 BR-E—XRE=A=+—H 2016 2015
—E—REF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ExT FH& T
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RB AR ZRE 6,484 6,484
Property, plant and equipment M- -BERRE 6 7
6,490 6,491
Current assets B EE
Other receivables and deposits HihEWRIERIRE 109 113
Amount due from the immediate FE U B 235 IR A Bl IE
holding company - 5
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U BT /B A B TR I8 35,843 10
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEHEER 21,394 176
57,346 304
Current liabilities e &R
Amount due to the ultimate FEAT B AR 3 IR A Bl FIE
holding company 484 858
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE AT B A B FRIE 6,671 24,929
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary e —ERAM B A T RIE 3 -
Accruals and other payables FEET & A & H < FRIE 2,598 1,278
9,756 27,065
Non-current liabilities ERBRR
Convertible note TR EE 77,267 =
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 563 -
77,830 -

ket ot it g 11 14
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RE B mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=—Z—~"F=A=1+—HILFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY - continued

39. ELFIMBRKRAER -8

As at 31 March 2016 W-—E—XR"E=BA=+—H 2016 2015

—E—RE —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHExT FHE T

Net current assets/(liabilities) RBDEE(&E)FHE 47,590 (26,761)

Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERABERE 54,080 (20,270)

Net liabilities BERB8 (23,750) (20,270)
Capital and reserves BAXR R

Share capital [N 6,484 6,484

Reserves ERi] (30,234) (26,754)

Total equity gauas (23,750) (20,270)

The financial statement was approved and authorised for

issue by the Board of Directors on 16 June 2016 and signed

on its behalf by:

Chen Jin Shan

Yung Ka Lai

Executive Director Executive Director

2 04 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZ=ZE—A"F=A=1+—HILFE

2015/2016 &R

40. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 40. XL F) s
Convertible
Share note Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
DE: 14
B iR REGE RitBEHR #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT FTiEr TERT TER
At at 31 March 2014 and RZE-ME=ZA=+-HK
1 April 2014 “E-MEMA—A (7,653) - (15,778) (23,431)
Loss for the year FEBR - - (3,323) (3,323)
Total comprehensive loss FEZEERAS
for the year - - (3,323) (3,323)
At at 31 March 2015 and RZZE-HF=A=1-HK
1 April 2015 “E-HEMNA—-H (7,653) - (19,101) (26,754)
Loss for the year FEFE - - (11,175) (11,175)
Total comprehensive loss FEXHFELHE
for the year - - (11,175) (11,175)
Issue of convertible note BOURRERE - 9,624 = 9,624
Deferred taxation of ARREEZELEHE
convertible note - (1,929) - (1,929
At at 31 March 2016 RZE-RE=A=1+-H (7,653) 7,695 (30,276) (30,234)
BEESEERARLR
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE—Z—"F=A=+—HILFE

41. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 41. iRKAiEFIET &

The Group operates as Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under control of trustees. The Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, this contribution is

matched by employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefits schemes operated by the local government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the retirement benefits to fund the
benefits. The only obligations of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits schemes are to make the specified

contributions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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RE M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE =Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 24 September 2013, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) whereby the
Board can grant options for the subscription of our shares
to the employees, managerial staff and senior employees
and those other persons that the Board considers that
they will contribute or have contributed to the Group (the
“Participants”) as described in the Share Option Scheme
in order to serve as compliment and to reciprocate their
contribution to the Group. The maximum number of shares
that can be issued according to the Share Option Scheme
was 64,840,530 shares, which is equivalent to 10% of
the issued capital of the Company after completion of
the Listing on the Stock Exchange. The number of options
that may be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares
immediately after the completion of the Listing. Unless
otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted
to a Participant under the options shall not exceed 1%
within any 12-month period (other than those granted to
the substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or the independent non-executive directors
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules), or the total number of shares that may be granted
under the options to the substantial shareholders of the
Company or the independent non-executive directors or any
of their respective associates shall not exceed 0.1% of the
shares in issue of the Company from time to time. There is
no minimum period that the options must be held before
they become exercisable, and the options granted shall be
exercised within the period decided by the Board; however
no options shall be exercised 10 years after they have been
granted. The exercise price of the option shall be the higher
of (a) the closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the
average closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) nominal
value of the share. Each grantee shall pay a consideration of
HK$1.00 at the time the option is granted. The Share Option
Scheme shall take effect from the date it is adopted and
shall remain effective within a period of 10 years from that
date.

42. FERR gt B

RZZE—Z=FAA=-+THA AQFEK
Wm—IERERESTE (TERESTED) B
BT NASEES BEEAER
SABMEURBRESEMLAESSA
AEEHIELCHAEBELERNZ
LHMALT (ZBEALDREBERE
URBADNBRG EHRFEELSL TR
BEEREEHREEELNERM R
EEREASTRITNRSROEE R
64,840,530 Bz 17 - HER A A B AEE R
FIERLEHBEBHTRANI0% - RIE
BREFIGRITRENERERE T
BHEBBEEX LT REARARSEHITR
BH10%  BRIFARDARERBRAS
SaitE BRITREBERERTSEA
THRGOEHEREM2ELARTEEB
1% (BAARNEERR (EER LR
AN BUFHTESIHESBEZHE
AT (EXR LEHAA)REERD) K
REBREAIRFAQAAFTERRERE
YHPFTEESTRARESENEMHEEA
THWRDEHFTBEBADRTREEZ
TIRMI0.1% - BB EBREATHE
RIAFENRENE MEBLHNERER

BARREEBBI10FBITE  BRET
EEARQRONRK L BHEBR IS
AmEXREFAINEHE: b)RERE
EREAMAEEAXZ A EBXAER
BEXRLAIINFUTE: ROKRGH
HEZBSE SEARAARNERBRE
Z B A41.008 T 2 (UE - BRET 8 R
ERMERLEN EEZBBF0FHE
RNAREN -

e T e
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B BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z—Z—<F=A=1+—HLFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no share

option have been granted during the year ended 31 March
2016 (2015:Nil).

43. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial

statements, the Group had entered into transactions with

related parties which,

in the opinion of directors, were

carried out at normal commercial terms and in the ordinary

course of the Group’s business, as shown below:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration:

20

42.

43.

R Bz fE Rt — &

B AR B RBE=S—A
FZAZ+— B FELREHAME
B (Z2—H%F &) o

EXRBALRS
BESHBRRAMEGFHBEEN &
EEGHEMEHALETTIRS EER

B RERZDRETBHEGRENALE
AEXBBREDET JIRAOT:

(a) XREBARFH:

2016 2015

—E—REFE —E—fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Short term employees benefits EHEERER 732 634
Provident fund contributions AEEHR 17 14
749 648

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE=Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

43. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 43. EXRABA LR S - &
TRANSACTIONS - continued
(b) During the year, the Group had the following (b) FR - FEEHEBABMALTZES
transactions with related parties: mTF:
2016 2015
—B—-RF¥ —Z-5fF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FiET
Sales to fellow subsidiaries: HETEANMBE QA
— Edward Hospital Company Limited —-EBEZEFEERERAT - 1,264
— Jiaxing City Shuguang Western —ZEmBXTIAEELS
and Chinese Hospital Limited BRAERAF - 53
— Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital —REBNEBERERAF
Company Limited - 100
Licence fee paid to the ultimate IHFERAERARZHAE:
holding company:
- Hua Xia —#E 501 412

Rental expenses paid to the mother of XN FHEZEL T2 BH 2
Ms. Yung Ka Lai: HefxX: 78 117

Rental expenses paid to FHP Chain INTFEREEFEHEEHS

B2 1,185 1,237

Sales to FHP Chain MRS rEEEEEE - 178

Purchase from FHP Chain BEERErEEEHEE - 1,665

The Group had entered into a number of transactions with AEBEHEBEEFTLZERS  RRAE

connected parties which, upon the listing of shares on the GRFrEmE RIBELMHRA ZE@EE

Stock Exchange, became connected persons of the Company FRARDABZEAEALT ZERFER

under the Listing Rules. These transactions are continuing BRG MEBRBETLMAREBETAES

transactions exempt from the independent shareholder’s YRRFEZHRE - FHEHCHRESE
approval requirements under the Listing Rules. The details HEFERERS | NIKE-

information has been disclosed on Report of the Directors
“Continuing Connected Transactions”.

-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B mRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE—Z—"F=HA=1+—HILFE

44. PLEDGED OF ASSETS
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were

pledged to bank to secure the Group’s banking facilities in

44, BEEH

RBEHR > THEEDEFFRITUS
REBERMEIMMZRITRE

Note 33:
2016 2015
—E—XREFE —E-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#xT FE T
Pledged bank deposits (Note 29) EIRHFRITER (HFFE29) 6,096 12,970
Prepaid lease payments (Note 19) A SEERE (MEE19) 10,623 1,909
Investment property (Note 20) BEWE (KE20) 7,199 8,093
23,918 22,972
45. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 45. BEHERIE
The Group as lessee EREESEBEA

At the end of each reporting period, the Group were
committed to make the following future minimum lease
payments in respect of land and buildings rented under non-

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

REJ/EPRR  AEERBETTHELE
HE (HBNT)REELmREF I
XN RREEE S HEEOT

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHE T

Within one year —FR® 22,978 24,864
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E-_ZEF (BREEWME) 32,876 42,180
Over five years FENE - 58
55,854 67,102

2‘] O WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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46.

47.

48.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE=Z— ~F=-HA=1+—HIFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have any

significant capital commitments.

COMPARATIVES

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to

conform with current year’s presentation.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 June
2016.

46.

47.

48.

BEKiE
R-_B—XNER-_ZB-—AFE=A=+—
A AEEYBEMEREREAE-

LR#F
ETHBRYEFCEF I EUARERFE
225
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Five Years Financial Summary

LIFEHHREE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years, as extracted from the

BEECTREERYBRRLRBREZLSE
EREENEYRFEC2XEREEREREZ

published audited financial statements and the prospectus, is set BESHHNOT :
out below:
RESULTS KR
For the year ended 31 March
BEZRA=T—-HLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“E-RE| ZE-If ZE-NFE - CZEB-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET TEr TET TiEx
Revenue & 1,321,763 1,567,687 2,096,455 1,885,369 1,712,147
Cost of sales HEMRAK (1,175,635)|  (1,407,842)  (1,906,991)  (1,721,210)  (1,551,795)
Gross profit B 146,128 159,845 189,464 164,159 160,352
Other revenue Hitl s 5,000 6,379 7,543 7,729 6,258
Other gain/(loss), net 2tz (B8) 38 2,530 (122) 746 1,078 1,922
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREESE - (785,169) = = =
Loss on disposal of subsidiary HENBAREE (772) - - - -
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (100,466) (90,590) (70,524) (61,397) (54,899)
Administrative expenses THRX (48,359) (46,854) (47,033) (46,802) (40,163)
Profit/(loss) from operations BEXERY (ER) 4,061 (756,511) 80,196 64,767 73,470
Finance costs BBER (16,365) (8,819) (6,015) (4,090) (4,928)
(Loss)/profit before taxation B (ER) &% (12,304) (765,330) 74,181 60,677 68,542
Taxation BiE (1,158) (7,950) (25,113) (18,772) (23,210)
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE (FER) /B (13,462) (773,280) 49,068 41,905 45,332
(Loss)/profit for the year UTATEEFEE
attributable to: (EH#|) g%
Owners of the Company RAEERA (13,802) (772,949) 48,920 41,763 45,228
Non-controlling interests FERER 340 (331) 148 142 104
(13,462) (773,280) 49,068 41,905 45,332
As at 31 March
R=B=+—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
k- L3 “Z-1f —E-ME —E-=f “E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET TEr TET TEx
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RERAR
Total assets BEE 646,798 655,340 1,432,719 1,390,923 1,293,698
Total liabilities “mef (356,274) (372,296) (386,996) (1,257,722) (1,203,905)
Total equity R 290,524 283,044 1,045,723 133,201 89,793
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